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  2009 ($M) 2008 ($M)

EBITDA 76.7 89.2

Discontinued business 4.3 (5.3)

Depreciation/amortisation (6.5) (6.1)

EBIT 74.5 77.8

Interest (31.4) (22.6)

Taxation (13.1) (22.3)

NOPAT 30.0 32.9

NZS performance fee  - 17.8

NZS share revaluation (39.2) 18.9

SFF (49.6) -

Capital gain on sale of wool business 17.6 -

Restructuring and discontinued  (10.3) 0.7

Other* (14.9) 2.9

NPAT  $(66.4)m  $73.2m 

The table shows the reconciliation of the operating 
profit to reported net profit after tax (NPAT).

*Other reflects IFRS fair value adjustments, writedowns and equity earnings from associates

The Company reported net operating  
earnings after tax of $30 million for the year 
ending 30 June 2009.

Despite the operating challenges, the result 
confirms the underlying strength in  
the business with solid performances from 
many of the Company’s divisions in the face 
of a rapidly declining market late in the 
financial year.

Nevertheless, the results reflect the difficult operating 
environment that exists in the countries where the 
Company does business.  The impact of the worst 
global recession in 70 years on the rural sector and 
the significant slowdown in dairy activity towards the 
end of the reporting year, had a detrimental effect on 
PGG Wrightson’s (PGW) performance.  The operating 
performance was further impacted by a range of non-

trading items – the impact of fair value adjustments on 
investments and the costs associated with the Silver Fern 
Farms (SFF) settlement.

The Company performed very well during the first six 
months of trading, however, customers responded to 
the tougher market conditions and outlook by seriously 
reducing their spend.  This was particularly marked 
during the April – June quarter, where there was fierce 
competition for the reduced business putting increased 
pressure on margins.  While many of the businesses  
have performed well, those exposed to dairy have  
suffered accordingly.

EARNINGS
The operating performance was affected by a range of 
non-trading items, which meant the Company reported 
an accounting loss.  Net profit after tax (NPAT) was a loss 
of $66.4 million, compared with last year’s $73.2 million 
reported profit.
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Operating cashflow of $52 million compared with $26 million 
the previous year, a significant increase that reflects the 
management of working capital downwards with particular 
improvement in accounts receivable.

Total assets of $1.5 billion were in line with last year.  

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT PLAN
In June 2009, the Company notified its banking syndicate of 
a potential breach of its financial covenants as at 30 June, 
due to adverse trading conditions expected from the last four 
months of the financial year.  A waiver of financial covenants 
was received from both the banking syndicate and South 
Canterbury Finance, before the finalisation of the Company’s 
results for the 2009 financial year.

Upon receiving the waivers, the Company also commenced 
negotiations with its banking syndicate for various 
amendments to its existing banking facilities.   
The Company has subsequently renegotiated a revised 
banking package with the following terms:

 
 

30 September 2011);

repaid by 31 March 2010 (previously $125 million expiring 
on 31 December 2010);

 
$85 million for the months of October and November 2009) 
that matures on 31 August 2011, with the limit and term 
reviewed annually (previously expiring 30 April 2010); and

 
$40 million.

In addition, South Canterbury Finance has agreed to extend 
its debt until 28 February 2013.

In conjunction with the renegotiation of the terms of the 
Company’s bank facilities, the Company has been reviewing 
its capital structure and evaluating its options for meeting 
the new bank debt amortisation schedule.  

As part of this review, the Company is continuing to progress 
its previously announced debt reduction programme and is 
also considering the sale of selected non-core assets and a 
potential equity raising.  Any equity raising is likely to involve 
both existing shareholders and new investors, and may also 
include the introduction of a new substantial shareholder.  
The Company has engaged First NZ Capital and UBS to assist 
with this review and expects to provide a further update 
on its plans for meeting the new bank debt amortisation 
schedule when the review is completed.

DISTRIBUTION
The Board decided that there would be no further dividend 
declared in relation to the 2008-09 year.

Of these, the most directly comparable result on which  
to assess performance is the net operating profit after tax 
(excluding the one-off and non-trading items) figure of 
$30 million, down $2.9 million or 8.8 percent from  
last year.

The Group NPAT was significantly reduced by one-off 
items, largely non-cash totalling $96.4 million – the impact 
of fair value adjustments and a provision for expenses 
incurred in the settlement with SFF.  The two major parts 
of this were $39.2 million, related to the revaluation to 
market price at 30 June 2009 of the Group’s shareholding 
in NZ Farming Systems Uruguay (NZS) and $49.6 million 
related to the settlement of the SFF transaction. 

The SFF settlement was an important resolution and PGW 
was pleased that both companies were able to put the 
disappointment of last year’s events behind them.   
The settlement provided certainty for the Company 
over the financial exposure resulting from its inability to 
complete the transaction.  The terms of the settlement 
were approved by PGW’s banking syndicate.

The decline in operating earnings reflected a much 
tougher trading environment in the autumn period, 
with earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) for the year 

also experienced increased financing costs following the 
renewal of facilities during the financial year. 

Revenue for the year at $1.3 billion remained relatively 
strong and in line with last year.  Margins were under 
pressure during the last quarter, as competition increased 
in a number of business areas.



New Zealand agriculture is uniquely positioned to respond 
to the factors facing global food markets.  We possess 
some of the world’s leading farmers.  We have an 
abundance of fresh, clean water and an environment 
that is suited to year round food production.  We are 
recognised globally as producing high quality food and  
our farming systems are seen as comparatively natural  
and sustainable.

With its good soil and availability of water, South America 
has particular potential to make significant amounts of 
land vastly more productive.

Ultimately, New Zealand agriculture will increasingly  
be able to secure premiums in the international market.   
PGW will have many opportunities to play its part to 
support customers to overcome the challenges we 
face in food production and to help lead New Zealand 
agribusiness to the fore as a global food producer.

CUSTOMERS
Our customers are at the forefront of what we do as a 
business and we are constantly looking for ways to serve 
them better.  We undertake a regular programme of 
customer research to identify clients’ needs and investigate 
the best ways to respond to them and we are placing 
increasing emphasis on decisions being made in the field 
closer to customers.  Through new capabilities, structures 
and a broader focus, we believe we are shifting our 
business in the right direction.

We are investing in people, products and technology to 
support farmer needs.  

We are working with customers to bring about positive 
structural change to the wider agribusiness industry.  
Through two joint venture operations; New Zealand 
Merino (NZM) and Wool Partners International (WPI),  
we assist growers and supply chain partners in all aspects 
of wool production, sales and marketing.  Both NZM and 
WPI aim to generate greater returns for New Zealand 
growers and are making solid progress.

Although the SFF proposal was unsuccessful because 
of the global credit crisis, our proposal to invest in the 
country’s largest meat marketer and processor to create an 
integrated supply chain with clear links to customers, was 
approved by an overwhelming number of SFF shareholders. 

These and other initiatives are driven by a concern for the 
future of our customers’ businesses and our own success, 
which are clearly linked.  We are prepared to commit  
the Group’s resources to influence positive change, which  
is behind our initiatives in the meat, wool and  
velvet industries.

We continue to address cost structures and purchasing 
terms to improve our operating performance.   
During the year we introduced a number of initiatives, 
including a full replacement of the accounting and 
billing systems for the parent Company, a review of the 
procurement and outsourcing activities Group-wide and 
active management of the PGW vehicle fleet, that will 
reduce both costs and environmental impacts.  

We have also strengthened our commitment to meet 
customer needs by reorganising the resources available 
at regional management level to coordinate our services 
on a ‘one stop’ PGW basis.  We commenced a regular 
programme of market research during the year.

We are confident that these and other measures are 
preparing the Company to take advantage of the 
inevitable improvement in the economic situation.  

During 2008, we established a Sustainability Taskforce.  
Recognising the growing importance of sustainable 
farming practices, the Company-wide team is designed  
to coordinate the Company’s sustainability initiatives.   
The group’s primary activities include exploring ways 
to reduce PGW’s environmental impact, advocating on 
behalf of the agricultural sector and identifying new 
products, which might help customers improve their 
sustainable farming methods.  

Over the last 12 months we have taken a number of  
steps to reduce the Company’s environmental impact.   
To reduce our emissions we have shifted our vehicle  
fleet to diesel and we are minimising travel, particularly  
air travel, which has decreased by 25 percent.   
The Christchurch head office is working with the local city 
council on ways to improve our sustainability at that site.  

In addition, our Seeds business has an exciting product 
research and development programme, that has the 
potential to help farmers reduce the level of on-farm 
emissions and improve drought tolerance of pastures 
under climate change conditions.
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POSITIVE FUTURE FOR AGRICULTURE
Despite the present conditions, it is worth 
remembering that the economic importance 
of agriculture to New Zealand is set to increase 
dramatically.  Unlike the predictions of the 1980s, 
agriculture is not a sunset industry, but is to be the 
growth powerhouse of the New Zealand economy 
for the foreseeable future.  

Agriculture is one of New Zealand’s most exciting 
and challenging industries and the challenges  
that confront the sector today are part of a series  
of fundamental changes occurring in the  
world economy.  

The U.N. Food and Agriculture Organisation (FAO) 
reports that in 50 years time the world will need 
approximately 100 per cent more food than today.  
If that is not challenging enough it is believed that 
only 1 per cent more land will be made available for 

of the increase will have to come from efficiency 
improving technology.  In the face of low-cost, high 
volume competition, we will need to produce higher 
value ingredients and processes and continue to lead 
the world in food production.  

Plainly, if these statistics are anywhere near accurate 
there will need to be a big lift in production 
required to meet demand.  This presents PGW with 
the opportunity to help producers and growers 
increase production in New Zealand, Australia and 
South America.  Our businesses are well-placed 
to assist with animal genetics, seed technology, 
nutrition expertise, land management techniques 
among many other production enhancing services.

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR’S REPORT CONTINUED



PEOPLE
The Company is fortunate to have a team of highly 
experienced and committed employees with a large 
range of skills in every part of the business.  During 
the year, we augmented the existing capabilities with 
new talent across the whole business.  A number of 
senior executives joined the Company, including Mike 
Skilling as Group General Manager Customer Services 
and Bruce Gordon who is driving greater efficiency in 
his role as Group General Manager, Corporate Services. 
Jason Dale joined the Company in August 2009, as 
PGW’s Chief Financial Officer.  In 2008, John McKenzie 
was promoted to  Group General Manager of our Seed, 
Grain and Nutrition unit, which not only reflects the very 
high regard in which John is held in the industry, but also 
the importance to PGW of the seed, grain and animal 
nutrition business.

New appointments were made across the Company, as part 
of a programme to improve service delivery to customers 
and to implement the strategy developed last year.

There were changes to the Board of Directors. In July this 
year, Craig Norgate announced that he would step down 
as Board Chairman and would be replaced by Keith Smith.  
Mr Norgate remains on the Board.  Earlier, Brian Jolliffe 
retired from the Board and Bruce Irvine was appointed to 
replace him.  Brian Jolliffe is the retiring Managing Director 
of Pyne Gould Corporation and has played an important 

role in helping to set the Company’s course.

We appreciate the support provided by 
our fellow Board members during this 
difficult economic year.  We are also most 
appreciative of the dedication and hard  

work of all our employees, who continue to 
provide our customers with the level of service 

that allows them to manage productive and 
profitable businesses.

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
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THE IMMEDIATE FUTURE
While the international agricultural sector outlook 
overall remains robust, the ongoing global recession is 
dampening farmer confidence, which was further eroded 
by news of Fonterra’s reduced payout, leading to restricted 
spending.  This means that while many of our businesses 
have performed well, those exposed to dairy, in particular, 
have suffered in New Zealand, Australia and Uruguay.  

While sheep and beef farm incomes have improved to 
their best levels in recent years, this has not yet been 
reflected in expenditure, which has been kept to a 
minimum, given the past poor returns.

The Board remains confident that the rural sector will 
play a significant part in leading New Zealand out of the 
recession and that the business is performing well in very 
difficult conditions.  

The Company is focused on further improving its 
performance and is well-placed to take advantage of 
improvements in the economic situation when they occur.  
Whilst there is still significant economic uncertainty, the 
general consensus is that the New Zealand economy will 
begin growing again towards the end of 2009. 

With any improvement in operating conditions, given the 
changes that the Company has undertaken at a strategic 
and management level, we should see a positive impact 
on earnings.

Keith Smith                             Tim Miles
Chairman                                  Managing Director



PGW has a very strong reputation of providing its 
farming and horticultural customers with a wide 
range of specialist goods and services.  Experts 
are available to meet customer needs in all areas, 
including livestock, rural supplies, finance, insurance, 
real estate and horticulture.  

Late in the year, Customer Services undertook a 
reorganisation of regional management roles to 
enhance customer interface and experience.  Through 
more regional accountability and co-ordination of 
decision making the business will even better ensure 
that customers get the very best PGW has to offer. 

LIVESTOCK
Overall, the livestock division performed strongly.  In a 
reversal of fortunes from the previous year, sheep and 
beef farmers have had a better 12 months than their 
dairy counterparts.  An abundance of feed nationwide 
and significantly improved schedules have seen a major 
increase in prices for both sheep and beef cattle.   
A reduction in the sheep population, following last year’s 
culling of breeding ewes and the fall in the lamb crop,  
also assisted in driving up lamb prices.

The schedule price for sheep was 27 percent higher on 
average than that for the previous year.  Beef schedule 
prices were 14 percent higher on average than those in 
2007-08.  Tallies were down by 12.7 percent for sheep, 
while beef cattle tallies remained in line with those of the 
previous year.

The significant reduction year-on-year of the dairy payout 
has seen the heat come out of the dairy industry and 
farmer confidence fall.  Dairy cattle prices have dropped 
significantly and the current economic climate has seen a 
dramatic drop in the number of dairy conversions.   

Dairy cattle average prices have decreased 19 percent from 
2007-08, while tallies have also fallen by 28 percent.

An internet trading platform, ‘AgOnline’ for the sale and 
purchase of dairy herds, was launched this year and will be 
expanded to other stock classes in 2009-10. 

RURAL SUPPLIES
Under the PGG Wrightson and Williams and Kettle brands, 
nation-wide stores provide a range of products, including 
animal health and nutrition, grain, seed, chemicals, 
clothing, fuel, fencing and machinery.

Rural Supplies revenues were up year-on-year, despite 
the general drop-off in farmer spend over the autumn 
that reflected their confidence levels in the economic 
conditions.  The business strengthened its market position 
and continued to focus on operational improvements 
and reduced inventory holdings in excess of $10 million 
through better controls.  Supply chain and product line 
rationalisation is nearly complete and reductions will lead 
to cost savings in the future.

A technical “super” team was finalised during the year, 
offering customers industry leading expertise in animal 
health, animal nutrition and agronomy.

FRUITFED SUPPLIES
Once again Fruitfed Supplies performed strongly, assisted 
by a good growing season for apples and kiwifruit 
customers.  The uncertainty in international wine markets 
affected grape growers’ discretionary spend and this had 
some impact on the business.

The business unit retained market share in apples,  
kiwifruit and grapes, while growth continued in the 
vegetable sector.

CUSTOMER 
SERVICES

OPERATIONAL
REVIEW
2009

EBIT $31.2 MILLION VS $39.3 MILLION IN 2008

AT A GLANCE:PGG WRIGHTSON AND SUBSIDIARIES

THE BIGGER PICTURE:

OPERATIONAL REVIEW
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IRRIGATION AND PUMPING
The Irrigation and Pumping business performed well 
above expectation, due to a continuation of higher than 
anticipated demand flowing on from the 2007-08 year.  
This demand dropped, however, in late 2008 following the 
reduction in dairy commodity prices and the impact of the 
global credit freeze. 

Agriculture New Zealand, one of the country’s largest 
private training establishments, had a successful year.   
It developed a strong partnership with the Western 
Institute of Technology Taranaki, to service the agricultural 
training needs of the Taranaki region.  

In collaboration with a number of institutions, Agriculture 
New Zealand delivered agricultural and horticultural training 
to more than 2,000 students in the last academic year.

SEEDS AND GRAIN
Once again, the Seeds business was the largest contributor 
to PGW’s earnings.  The business grew despite the global 
economic environment and the drought conditions in both 
Australia and Uruguay.

Procurement of forage seed locally and internationally had 
its challenges, due to pricing volatility and climatic impacts.  
However, Seed’s global production network helps reduce 
these risks allowing forage product sales to proceed  
as planned. 

In New Zealand, the first half of the year was characterised 
by very strong demand.  However, later in the year activity 
slowed as the economic conditions began to impact,  
no more so than in dairy, where conversions became 
virtually non-existent compared with the previous  
12 months.  Despite the conditions, the autumn sales 
period was satisfactory, with continued adoption of 
cultivars, particularly the new AR37 technology, which 
maintained strong market acceptance. 

The Seeds business continued an active research and 
development program through its own initiatives and a new 
joint venture signed with Plant and Food Research Limited.

The grain business comprising cereal cultivar research 
and development and proprietary product marketing, 
grain trading, drying, storage and processing, and crop 
agronomy services performed strongly.  There were 
increased sales of proprietary cereals, including the 
successful release of the new milling wheat cultivar ‘SAGE’ 
and increased sales in grain trading, drying and processing.

On the international front, both earnings and profit 
increased despite highly volatile currency movements.  
Although the global seeds markets remain depressed 

and orders declined particularly after October 2008,  
the strength of the business and diversity of the customer 
base led to good performance overall.  

In Australia, in the face of some of the worst climatic 
conditions experienced, the business has demonstrated 
that it has a very strong base.  This platform has  
delivered good results in the circumstances and as the 
business aligns itself with the on-going trends  
in Australian agriculture, it is well-placed for future  
growth opportunities.  The negative dairy environment 
impacted the business result, but through solid cost 
management, the operating performance improved on  
the previous year.  

The Stephen Pasture Seeds company was purchased and 
successfully integrated into the Australian business during 
the year.

ANIMAL NUTRITION
The Agri-Feeds liquid feeds business had another  
good year.  Highlights for the year were the 
implementation of a new marketing programme with  
a focus on animal nutrition, the launch of RumenX –  
a breakthrough calf rearing product and a 50 percent 
improvement in plant productivity and efficiency at the 
Time Capsule factory.

SEED, GRAIN 
NUTRITION
EBIT $41.6 MILLION VS $35.4 MILLION IN 2008

AT A GLANCE:

OPERATIONAL REVIEW: CUSTOMER SERVICES (CONTINUED)

THE BIGGER PICTURE:

OPERATIONAL REVIEW
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FINANCE
PGG Wrightson Finance continued to grow and improve 
its financial performance in a year dominated by the global 
financial crisis and the associated tightening of credit 
markets.  The solid result reflected the strength of the 
business and the full suite of products and services offered 
to customers.

Double-digit growth was again recorded in the loan book 
with a 12 percent increase to a total of $560 million.   
The deposit book grew 15 percent to reach $303 million.  
Assets under management are now $640 million up  
16 percent and the reinvestment rate averaged  
74 percent, which was an excellent result given the intense 
competition for funds.

A $100 million Bond issue was fully subscribed in 
December 2008 and PGG Wrightson Finance was accepted 
into the Crown Guarantee Scheme.

Late in the financial year, a new Sovereign banking 
platform was successfully introduced and a new internet 
banking system was launched.

REAL ESTATE
The New Zealand Real Estate business was dominated by 
the unprecedented drop in market sales and the lack of 
credit that further restricted sales.  The business, however, 
achieved an increase in market share to more than 33 
percent, a record for the Company.  The business has 
streamlined its cost structure to align with the market and 
is well prepared for the introduction of the new regulatory 
regime in the second half of 2009.  The Australian Real 
Estate business was closed during the year.

INSURANCE
The Insurance business had a successful year with revenue 
growing 15 percent.  The broker network continued to 
be expanded and the strong partnership with AON NZ Ltd 
was maintained.

FUNDS MANAGEMENT
PGG Wrightson Funds Management is contracted to 
manage the NZS fund and to provide total management 
service for NZS and all the properties it owns in Uruguay.  

The farm management business made further substantial 
progress during the year. The number of cows milked 
peaked at 12,800, while the number of operating 
cowsheds increased from 13 to 25.  Milk production 
reached 45 million litres, representing around 5 percent of 
Uruguay’s main milk processor Conaprole’s supply.

The South American business was faced with significant 
challenges with drought and dairy prices falling 
dramatically.  It did, however, undertake a successful 
debt raising of $16 million and continued to develop 
infrastructure on 36,000 hectares.  Future plans focus 
on continued expansion of milking sheds and further 
development of irrigation.  The business remains confident 
that the future is bright once the short-term issues are 
worked through.

South American agriculture was dominated by the worst 
summer drought in 30 years in Uruguay and Argentina 
and the fall in farm gate prices for arable crops, milk and 
meat, which dropped in line with the reduction in global 
commodity prices.

Despite the difficult economic and climatic conditions, 
the Seeds and Livestock businesses performed above 
expectations, while Rural Supplies operations were 
affected by reduced farmer spending.  

During the year, new acquisitions were successfully 
integrated and PGW consolidated its businesses into three 
groups including Seeds, Rural Services (Livestock, Real 
Estate; Rural Supplies) and Farm Management Services.   
A joint venture Irrigation and Pumping business was added 
to the Rural Services group during the year.

In the Seeds business, PGW has a leadership position in 
forage seed in Chile, Argentina and Uruguay and has 
extended its reach into Brazil, with the formation of a new 
Company, NZ Ruralco.

FINANCIAL
SERVICES

SOUTH
AMERICA

EBIT $14.7 MILLION VS $22.5 MILLION IN 2008 EBIT $4.1 MILLION VS $2.5 MILLION IN 2008

AT A GLANCE: THE BIGGER PICTURE:

THE BIGGER PICTURE:

OPERATIONAL REVIEW OPERATIONAL REVIEW
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Keith Smith

Tim Miles

Sir Selwyn Cushing

Murray Flett

Bruce Irvine

Baird McConnon

Sam Maling

Craig Norgate

Bill Thomas

Brian Jolliffe

Keith Smith
B.Com, FCA  
- Chairman from 23 July 2009

Keith Smith was appointed as a Director 
and Chairman of Wrightson Ltd in June 
2004.Keith is a chartered accountant, and 
until December 2005 was a partner in the 
national accounting practice BDO Spicers, 
specialising in Directorships. He is Chairman 
of Tourism Holdings Ltd, NZ Farming 
Systems Uruguay Ltd and The Warehouse 
Group Ltd. He is also a Director of Goodman 
(NZ) Ltd, Mighty River Power Ltd and a 
number of private companies. He is a Past 
President of The New Zealand Institute of 
Chartered Accountants. 

Sir Selwyn Cushing
KNZM, CMG 

Sir Selwyn was appointed to the Wrightson 
Board in March 2005 following the 
acquisition of Williams & Kettle Ltd, of which 
he had been a Director for more than  
20 years. 

Sir Selwyn has extensive experience in the 
rural sector and has been involved with 
public companies for 40 years. He is currently 
Chairman of Rural Equities Ltd and New 
Zealand Rural Properties Trust Management 
Ltd and Skellerup Holdings Ltd.  He has been 
a member of the New Zealand Exchange for 
30 years and has been involved with many 
corporate investment projects.

Brian Jolliffe
 

Brian Jolliffe retired from the Board of 
PGG Wrightson on 24 June 2009, given his 
retirement on 30 June 2009 as Managing 
Director of Pyne Gould Corporation, which 
owns 20.68 percent of the shares in  
PGG Wrightson. 

Sam Maling 
LLB, AFInstD 

Sam Maling is Chairman of Pyne Gould 
Corporation Ltd and MARAC Finance. 
He is also a Director of Perpetual Trust 
Ltd. He was appointed to the Board of 
Pyne Gould Guinness prior to its merger 
with Reid Farmers. Sam practices as a 
barrister in Christchurch and has over 
30 years professional experience in law. 
He is currently a Director of NZ Farming 
Systems Uruguay Ltd. He has served as a 
vice-president of the New Zealand Law 
Society and Chairman of the Broadcasting 
Standards Authority.

Baird McConnon
 

Baird McConnon is Chairman of Rural 
Portfolio Investments Ltd, and of Aorangi 
Laboratories Ltd. He is also a Director of a 
number of private companies related to the 
McConnon family interests.Baird has been 
involved in agriculture-related businesses 
in New Zealand for more than 30 years, 
most recently as Chief Executive of the team 
responsible for the development of the 
Mainland Consumer Products Group and the 
Australasian Food Holdings Group.

Murray Flett
B.Com Ag 

Murray Flett is a Southland-based dairy 
farmer. He is currently a Director of NZ 
Farming Systems Uruguay Ltd and several 
private companies in the food, printing and 
agricultural sectors.

Bruce Irvine 
B Com, LLB, FCA, FNZIM, AFInstD  

Bruce was appointed to the PGG Wrightson 
and PGG Wrightson Finance Boards in  
June 2009. Bruce is also a Director of  
Pyne Gould Corporation Ltd and its 
subsidiaries including MARAC Finance 
Ltd and Perpetual Trust Ltd.  Bruce was 
Managing Partner at Deloitte Christchurch 

May 2008.  He now acts as an independent 
director on various boards including: 
Christchurch City Holdings Ltd, House of 
Travel Holdings Ltd, Godfrey Hirst NZ Ltd, 
Market Gardeners Ltd, Rakon Ltd, Scenic 
Circle Hotels Ltd and Skope Industries Ltd. 
He is Chairman of the PGG Wrightson 
Board’s Audit Committee.

Tim Miles
  

Tim Miles joined PGG Wrightson on  
18 March 2008 as Managing Director.   
Tim came to PGG Wrightson after returning 
to New Zealand, having spent two years 
in the United Kingdom with Vodafone UK 
and the Vodafone Group. He fulfilled a 
range of leadership roles in a six year career 
with Vodafone, including Chief Executive 
New Zealand, Chief Executive Officer UK, 
Chief Technology Officer Vodafone Group 
and member of the Group executive 
team. Prior to that, he worked in a range 
of executive and other leadership roles 
with Unisys, Data General Corporation 
and IBM. Since returning to New Zealand 
Tim has been a non executive Director of 
Goodman Property Trust and Chairman of 
Equity Partners Media and Communication.  
His attributes are closely aligned to PGG 
Wrightson’s strategy and aspirations.

Craig Norgate
BBS, CA, FNZIM 
- Chairman to 23 July 2009

Craig Norgate is Managing Director of Rural 

percent of the shares in PGG Wrightson. 
Craig has over 20 years experience as a 
leader in the New Zealand primary sector, 
including two years as the inaugural CEO 
of Fonterra and, prior to that, a number of 
years as CEO of Kiwi Co-operative Dairies.

Craig is a Director of Westgate Port Taranaki 
Ltd, NZ Farming Systems Uruguay Ltd, 
Aotearoa Fisheries Ltd and Sealord Group 
Ltd and the New Zealand Institute of 
Chartered Accountants. He is Chairman of 
the PGG Wrightson Board’s Remuneration 
and Appointments Committee.

Bill Thomas

Bill Thomas farms Longbeach, the historic 
coastal flat land property 24km southeast 
of Ashburton. He is involved in Irrigation 
development, Arable, Sheep and Beef 
farming as well as a Dairy conversion.  
Bill became a Director of Pyne Gould 
Guinness Ltd in 1995.

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD:
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Jason Dale

Mike Skilling

John McKenzie

Michael Thomas

Barry Brook

Bruce Gordon

Andrew McSweeney

Jason Dale
Chief Financial Officer 

Jason Dale is responsible for PGG Wrightson’s 
Corporate functions including Finance and 
Accounting, Risk Assurance, Company 
Secretarial and legal affairs, Group Planning 
and Treasury. He joined the company in August 
2009  from the Auckland International Airport, 
where he was Chief Financial Officer.  Prior to 
joining Auckland Airport, Jason had significant 
experience in senior executive financial 
positions, with Fonterra and KPMG. Jason also 
has extremely relevant governance expertise in 
New Zealand, Australia and South America.

Mike Skilling
Group General Manager Customer Services 

Mike Skilling commenced with PGG Wrightson 
in October 2008 as Group General Manager – 
Customer Services.

Mike comes to PGG Wrightson with very good 
knowledge of the farming industry, joining  
PGG Wrightson from the BNZ, where over a 
period of 13 years he held senior positions, 
including GM Agribusiness Financial Services 
and Head of Rural Business BNZ, and most 
recently leading the Business banking division. 

Bruce Gordon
Group General Manager Corporate Services 

Bruce Gordon has over twenty years of 
commercial experience in senior positions 
and Boards and in the last ten years he has 
successfully held CEO and General Management 
positions in financial services, retail and 
investment organisations including The 
Warehouse Group, Cullen Investments, Bank 
of New Zealand and National Australia Bank. 
Bruce specialises in leading substantial cultural, 
performance and innovation change.  He holds 
a MBA, Diploma in Business (IS) and is a Fellow 
of FINSIA.

Barry Brook
Group General Manager South America

Barry is responsible for PGG Wrightson’s Farm 
Management Service Agreement to NZ Farming 
Systems Uruguay Ltd and other PGG Wrightson’s 
business operations in South America.  
Barry was appointed Chief Executive Officer of 
PGG Wrightson at the time of the Wrightson/
Pyne Gould Guinness merger and prior to 
that he had been Chief Executive Officer of 
Wrightson since 2004. Prior to his appointment 
as Wrightson Chief Executive, Barry was General 
Manager, International. In this role, he was 
responsible for the Group’s highly successful 
seeds business, and for its operations in 
Australia and Uruguay. Barry has a Masters of 
Agricultural Commerce (Hons) Degree and a 
diploma in Valuation and Farm Management, 
both from Lincoln University.

Andrew McSweeney 
Group General Manager Human Resources 

Andrew McSweeney is Group General  
Manager Human Resources. Andrew comes to  
PGG Wrightson after an outstanding career both 
in New Zealand and overseas. Most recently,  
he held Executive positions in financial services, 
as General Manager Human Resources for 
National Bank and General Manager People 
Capital for ANZ National.

John McKenzie 
Group General Manager Seed, Grain and 
Nutrition 

John McKenzie is responsible for PGG 
Wrightson’s Global Seed business.  He has 
reporting to him the business units in New 
Zealand, Australia and South America together 
with Research and Development, Production, 
all International Seed activities and our Turf 
business and Grain businesses.  He was the 
founder of the specialist proprietary forage 
seed company Agricom Ltd in 1986, which 
merged with Pyne Gould Guinness in July 2005.  
Shortly after that John was appointed the 
General Manager for Seeds and Grain of PGG 
Wrightson Seeds Ltd.  John graduated from 
Lincoln University with a Bachelor of Agricultural 
Science.  He practiced as a farm consultant after 
leaving Lincoln.  John has a 510 ha arable and 
horticultural property and has dairying interests.

Michael Thomas
Group General Manager Financial Services 

Michael joined us in mid 2007,  
having spent the past ten years in Australia’s 
largest agribusinesses, Landmark and the 
Australian Wheat Board. He held senior roles 
in mergers and acquisitions and in investor and 
grower relations in the Australian Wheat Board, 
and executive general manager roles in sales, 
operations and financial services in Landmark. 
Michael has reporting to him PGG Wrightson 
Finance Ltd, Insurance, Real Estate and Funds 
Management. Michael has over 20 years 
experience in corporate agribusiness.

MEMBERS OF THE TEAM:

GROUP LEADERSHIP TEAM
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The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of 
the Group as at 30 June 2009 and their financial performance and cash flows for the year ended on that date.
The Directors consider that the financial statements of the Group have been prepared using appropriate accounting policies, 
consistently applied and supported by reasonable judgements and estimates and that all relevant financial reporting and 
accounting standards have been followed.

The Directors believe that proper accounting records have been kept which enable, with reasonable accuracy,  
the determination of the financial position of the Group and facilitate compliance of the financial statements with  
the Financial Reporting Act 1993.

The Directors are pleased to present the financial statements for PGG Wrightson Limited set out on pages 25 to 83 for the 
year ended 30 June 2009.

For and on behalf of the Board.

     

          

Keith Smith                  Tim Miles     

Chairman                      Managing Director 

1. INTRODUCTION
1.1 The Board of PGG Wrightson is committed to acting with integrity and expects high standards of behaviour and 

accountability from all of PGG Wrightson’s officers and staff. As part of this commitment, the Board has adopted 

this Corporate Governance Code relating to the composition and conduct of the Board. The statement substantially 

adheres to the New Zealand Securities Commission Governance Principles and Guidelines and the NZX Corporate 

Governance Best Practice Code.

1.2 The Board’s primary objective is the creation of shareholder value through following appropriate strategies and 

ensuring effective and innovative use of Group resources in providing customer satisfaction. The Group will be a 

good employer and a responsible corporate citizen.

1.3 To ensure efficiency, the Board has delegated to the Managing Director and subsidiary company boards (other than 

PGG Wrightson Finance Limited) the day to day management and leadership of the Group.

2. CODE OF ETHICS
2.1 Consistent with the principle that Directors should observe and foster high ethical standards, the Board has 

developed and adopted a written Code of Ethics.

2.2 It is the responsibility of the Board to review the Code of Ethics from time to time, to implement the Code and to 

monitor compliance.

2.3 An interests register is maintained and regularly updated documenting interests disclosed by all Board members.

2.4  Directors are entitled to seek independent professional advice to assist them in meeting their responsibilities.

3. BOARD COMPOSITION AND PERFORMANCE
3.1 The Board is committed to the principle that there should be a balance of independence, skills, knowledge and 

experience among Directors, so that the Board works effectively.

3.2 The Board currently has nine Directors.

3.3 In accordance with NZX requirements, no less than one third of the total number of Directors are required to be 

Independent Directors.

3.4 For the purposes of this Code, the Board defines an Independent Director as one who:–

3.5 The Constitution contains no provisions for compulsory retirement or a fixed tenure for Directors, although Directors 

must periodically retire and seek re-election in accordance with the Constitution and Listing Rules. One third of the 

Directors or, if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to one third, shall retire from office 

at the annual meeting each year.

3.6 The Board will formally review the performance of each Director and the Board as a whole, not less than every two years.

3.7  The full Board met in person nine times in the year ended 30 June 2009. Directors also meet on other occasions for 

strategic planning and hold conference calls as required.
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4. DIRECTOR REMUNERATION
4.1 The Board is committed to the principle that remuneration of Directors and executives should be transparent,  

fair and reasonable.

4.2 Directors fees in aggregate are approved by shareholders.

4.3 The Board supports Directors holding shares in the Company but it does not consider this should be compulsory.

5. BOARD COMMITTEES
5.1 The Board has delegated some of its powers to Board operating committees – the Audit Committee and the 

Remuneration and Appointments Committee.

5.2 The Committees are made up of a minimum of three non-executive Director members and each Committee has a 

written Board-approved charter, which outlines that Committee’s authority, duties, responsibilities and relationship 

with the Board. The Board regularly reviews the performance of each Committee in accordance with the relevant 

Committee’s written charter. Committees meet an average of four times a year, with additional meetings being 

convened when required.

 Senior management are invited to attend Committee meetings as is considered appropriate. The Committees may 

appoint advisors as they see fit.

 Other Committees of the Board are formed as and when required.

5.3 Audit Committee

 The majority of the members of the Audit Committee will be Independent Directors and at least one member will 

have an accounting or financial background. The Committee will be chaired by an independent Director other than 

the Chair of the Board. No member of the Audit Committee will be an Executive Director. The members of the 

Audit Committee are currently B R Irvine (Chairman), K R Smith, Sir Selwyn Cushing, M J Flett and S R Maling.  

The Audit Committee met four times during the financial year.

 The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee are:

informed and updated on corporate financial matters;

 

or could reasonably be perceived to be impaired;

financial reports, as well as advising all Directors whether they comply with the appropriate laws and regulations;

5.4 Remuneration and Appointments Committee

 The members of the Remuneration and Appointments Committee are currently M C Norgate (Chairman),  

J B McConnon and S R Maling. The Remuneration and Appointments Committee met three times during the 

financial year.

 The main responsibilities of the Remuneration and Appointments Committee are:

reports to the Managing Director;

recommend to the Board remuneration changes for the Managing Director and direct reports; and

5.5 Credit Committee

 PGG Wrightson Finance has a Credit Committee. The Credit Committee is a Management Committee with the 

delegated responsibility on behalf of the Board, for overseeing credit strategies and policies within PGG Wrightson 

Finance's business and for approving loan applications in accordance with delegated authorities. The Board 

members of the Credit Committee are currently M C Norgate, W D Thomas and T M Miles. The Credit Committee 

met ten times during the financial year.

5.6 The Board notes best practice recommendations for the establishment of a Nominations Committee, but its 

preference is to appoint a subcommittee for this purpose as and when necessary.

6. INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
6.1 The Board subscribes to the principle that it has a key function to ensure the quality and independence of the 

external audit process.

6.2 To ensure there is no conflict with other services that may be provided by the external auditors, the Company has 

adopted a policy whereby the external auditors will not provide any other services unless specifically approved by 

the Audit Committee.

7. REPORTING AND DISCLOSURE
7.1 The Board endorses the principle that it should demand integrity both in financial reporting and in the timeliness 

and balance of disclosures on the Company’s affairs.

7.2 The Company will provide timely and adequate disclosure of information on matters of material impact to 

shareholders and comply with the continuous disclosure and other listing requirements of the NZX relating to 

shareholder reporting. The Company communicates through the interim and annual reports, releases to the NZX 

and media, and on the Group’s website at www.pggwrightson.co.nz.

7.3 PGG Wrightson has established and will maintain processes for the provision of information to the Board by 

management of sufficient content, quality and timeliness, as the Board considers necessary to enable the Board to 

effectively discharge its duties.

7.4 The Company has a detailed insider trading policy applying to all Directors and staff which incorporates all insider 

trading restraints. Directors and senior officers are able to trade in Company shares in accordance with that policy 

except when they are in possession of price-sensitive information not publicly available.

8. RISK MANAGEMENT
8.1 The Board is committed to the principle that it should regularly verify that the Company has appropriate processes 

in place to identify and manage potential and relevant risks.

8.2 In discharging this obligation the Board may:–

ensure that management prudently and efficiently manage resources; and

management systems within the business.

9. ANNUAL REVIEW
9.1 A review of this Corporate Governance Code and associated processes and procedures will be completed on  

an annual basis, to ensure the Company adheres to best practice governance principles and maintains high  

ethical standards.

9.2 This review will include a consideration of any processes that materially differ from the principles set out in the NZX 

Corporate Governance Best Practice Code. Where the Company adopts a practice that materially differs from the 

NZX Best Practice Code, this will be identified and noted in the Company’s annual report.
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FINANCIAL 
INFORMATION

PGG WRIGHTSON LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
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GROUP

2009

$000NOTE

GROUP

2008

$000

2009

$000

2008

$000

Foreign currency translation differences for foreign operations   (4,871)  4,592   (566)  638 

Realised capital reserve  (405)  551   (389)  - 

Net gain (loss) on fair value of assets held for sale transferred 

    from subsidiary to parent   -   -   -   (375)

Actuarial gains/losses on employee benefit plans recognised 

    directly in equity   (15,004)  (2,432)  (15,004)  (2,432)

Deferred tax on movement of actuarial gains/losses on 

    employee benefit plans  4,104   -   4,104   - 

Net gain (loss) on movement of fair value of financial instruments  5,147   647   -   - 

Deferred tax on movement of fair value of financial instruments  -   (459)  -   - 

Amalgamation of subsidiaries  -   -   392   - 

Other movements in equity  -   36   -   36 

Income and expense recognised directly in equity   (11,029)  2,935   (11,463)  (2,133)

       

Profit for the year   (66,444)  73,206   (20,323)  75,585 

       

Total recognised income and expense for the year 32  (77,473)  76,141   (31,786)  73,452 

       

Attributable to:       

Shareholders of the Company   (77,473)  76,141   (31,786)  73,452 

Total recognised income and expense for the year   (77,473)  76,141   (31,786)  73,452 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF RECOGNISED 
INCOME AND EXPENSE

GROUP

2009

$000NOTE

GROUP

2008

$000

2009

$000

2008

$000

Continuing operations          

Operating revenue      4,5  1,280,646   1,178,561   802,528   768,476 

          

Cost of sales        (977,203)  (892,748) (633,500)  (594,135)

Gross profit        303,443   285,813   169,028   174,341 

          

Operating expenses      6  (228,957)  (208,303)  (153,532)  (147,423)

Other income      7  95   301   142   481 

       (228,862) (208,002) (153,390) (146,942)

Results from operating activities        74,581   77,811   15,638   27,399 

          

Equity accounted earnings of associates      8  (1,380)  831   (1,199)  673 

Non operating items      9  (39,419)  19,434   1,918   67,240 

Fair value adjustments      10  (47,984)  17,483   (8,107)  (1,650)

Profit before interest        (14,202)  115,559   8,250   93,662 

          

Net interest and finance costs      11  (31,423)  (22,606)  (11,275)  (20,351)

Profit before income tax        (45,625)  92,953   (3,025)  73,311 

          

Income tax expense      12  (13,136)  (22,308)  (12,534)  347 

Profit from continuing operations        (58,761)  70,645   (15,559)  73,658 

          

Discontinued operation          

Profit/(loss) from discontinued operation (net of income tax) 13  (7,683)  2,561   (4,764)  1,927 

          

Profit for the year        (66,444)  73,206   (20,323)  75,585 

          

Profit attributable to:          

Shareholders of the Company        (66,444)  73,206   (20,323)  75,585 

          

Earnings per share          

Basic and diluted earnings per share (New Zealand Dollars) 14  (0.22)  0.26   

          

Continuing operations          

Basic and diluted earnings per share (New Zealand Dollars) 14  (0.20)  0.25   

PGG WRIGHTSON LIMITED

PGG WRIGHTSON LIMITED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE
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GROUP

2009

$000NOTE

GROUP

2008

$000

2009

$000

2008

$000

ASSETS          

Current          

Cash and cash equivalents      15  45,999   26,101   32,083   14,758 

Short-term derivative assets      16  7,275   1,975   4,955   1,759 

Trade and other receivables      17  214,914   243,158   369,258   301,199 

Finance receivables      19  408,213   324,365   4,470   - 

Income tax receivable        10,394   7,030   853   18,473 

Assets classified as held for sale      20  8,017   38,158   8,017   7,200 

Biological assets      21  3,630   5,078   3,630   5,078 

Inventories      22  203,766   175,593   57,802   68,016 

Total current assets        902,208   821,458   481,068   416,483 

          

Non-current          

Long-term derivative assets      16  5,537   100   281   21 

Finance receivables      19  151,726   182,665   -   4,440 

Biological assets      21  231   243   231   243 

Deferred tax asset      23  3,802   3,702   1,071   625 

Investment in subsidiaries      24  -   -   70,781   126,576 

Defined benefit asset      25  -   823   -   823 

Investments in equity accounted investees      26  3,268   3,141   3,150   2,651 

Other investments      27  70,187   69,526   36,429   6,272 

Intangible assets      28  340,133   319,606   305,696   292,820 

Property, plant and equipment      29  67,054   70,221   49,520   52,985 

Total non-current assets        641,938   650,027   467,159   487,456 

          

Total assets        1,544,146   1,471,485   948,227   903,939 

CONTINUED...

AS AT 30 JUNE AS AT 30 JUNE

GROUP

2009

$000NOTE

GROUP

2008

$000

2009

$000

2008

$000

LIABILITIES          

Current          

Debt due within one year - PGW      15  455,040   174,294   453,966   194,727 

Debt due within one year - PGWF      15  71,500   -   -   - 

Short-term derivative liabilities      16  6,802   1,660   5,687   1,172 

Liabilities classified as held for sale      20  -   20,900   -   - 

Accounts payable and accruals      30  171,179   176,058   77,949   104,595 

Finance current liabilities      31  249,922   269,876   -   2,454 

Total current liabilities        954,443   642,788   537,602   302,948 

          

Non-current          

Long-term debt - PGW      15  -   164,000   -   164,000 

Long-term debt - PGWF      15  -   140,000   -   - 

Long-term derivative liabilities      16  6,585   2,136   5,212   1,365 

Defined benefit liability      25  13,680   -   13,680   - 

Other long-term provisions      30  793   -   -   - 

Finance term liabilities      31  177,724   42,060   -   - 

Total non-current liabilities        198,782   348,196   18,892   165,365 

          

Total liabilities        1,153,225   990,984   556,494   468,313 

          

EQUITY          

Share capital      32  408,850   374,508   408,850   374,508 

Reserves      32  19,370   33,747   14,930   26,857 

Retained earnings      32  (37,299)  72,246   (32,047)  34,261 

Total equity        390,921   480,501   391,733   435,626 

Total liabilities and equity        1,544,146   1,471,485   948,227   903,939 

These consolidated financial statements have been authorised for issue on 27 August 2009.     

     

          

          

          

Keith Smith                  Tim Miles      

Chairman                      Managing Director      

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET  (CONTINUED)

PGG WRIGHTSON LIMITED PGG WRIGHTSON LIMITED
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GROUP

2009

$000NOTE

GROUP

2008

$000

2009

$000

2008

$000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES          

Cash was provided from:          

  Receipts from customers        1,269,082   1,212,010   848,044   899,315 

  Dividends received        728   831   142   643 

  Interest received        59,557   53,222   4,150   3,746 

        1,329,367   1,266,063   852,336   903,704 

Cash was applied to:          

  Payments to suppliers and employees        (1,210,956)  (1,161,155)  (792,092)  (895,607)

  Interest paid        (62,116)  (59,760)  (9,908)  (22,307)

  Income tax paid        (4,361)  (18,855)  (1,200)  (17,912)

        (1,277,433)  (1,239,770)  (803,200)  (935,826)

Net cash flow from operating activities     33  51,934   26,293   49,136   (32,122)

          

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES          

Cash was provided from:          

  Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment        740   14,149   740   2,019 

  Cash acquired on purchase of business        -   1,238   -   - 

  Proceeds from sale of investments        305   -   -   - 

        1,045   15,387   740   2,019 

Cash was applied to:          

  Purchase of property, plant and equipment        (6,476)  (16,524)  (4,473)  (6,690)

  Purchase of intangibles (software)        (12,436)  (821)  (10,991)  (1,067)

  Restructure/merger expenses paid        (2,614)  (2,290)  (2,136)  (2,290)

  Silver Fern Farms due diligence and settlement costs        (37,103)  -   (37,103)  - 

  Cash paid for purchase of investments        (21,959)  (82,056)  (4,829)  (28,993)

        (80,588)  (101,691)  (59,532)  (39,040)

Net cash flow from investing activities       (79,543)  (86,304)  (58,792)  (37,021)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE

CONTINUED...

GROUP

2009

$000NOTE

GROUP

2008

$000

2009

$000

2008

$000

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES          

Cash was provided from:          

  Issue of share capital        -   15,063   -   15,063 

  Net decrease in finance receivables        -   -   (30)  - 

  Increase in bonds        78,488   -   -   - 

  Net increase in clients’ deposit and current accounts        -   -   -   320 

  Increase in external borrowings        180,287   162,169   95,237   117,451 

  Repayment of loans to related parties        -   444   -   - 

  Increase in secured debentures        48,122   36,074   -   - 

        306,897   213,750   95,207   132,834 

Cash was applied to:          

  Dividends paid        (24,107)  (37,043)  (24,108)  (36,906)

  Net increase in finance receivables        (59,878)  (115,278)  -   (3,735)

  Net decrease in clients’ deposit and current accounts        (12,308)  (2,066)  (2,454)  - 

  Finance facility fees        (14,350)  -   (14,350)  - 

  Repayment of external borrowings        (140,475)  -   -   - 

  Repayment of loans to related parties        (8,272)  -   (27,314)  (13,878)

        (259,390)  (154,387)  (68,226)  (54,519)

Net cash flow from financing activities       47,507   59,363   26,981   78,315 

          

Net (decrease)/increase in cash held       19,898   (648)  17,325   9,172 

Opening cash/(bank overdraft)       26,101   10,626   14,758   5,586 

Less (cash)/bank overdraft classified as held for sale     20  -   16,123   -   - 

Cash and cash equivalents       45,999   26,101   32,083   14,758 

          

Comprises:          

PGG Wrightson Finance Limited       3,779   625   -   - 

Rest of the Group       42,220   25,476   32,083   14,758 

        45,999   26,101   32,083   14,758 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  (CONTINUED)

PGG WRIGHTSON LIMITED PGG WRIGHTSON LIMITED
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PGG Wrightson Limited (the “Company”) is a company domiciled in New Zealand, registered under the Companies Act 1993 and listed on 
the New Zealand Stock Exchange. The Company is an issuer in terms of the Financial Reporting Act 1993.    
      
Financial statements for the Company (separate financial statements) and consolidated financial statements are presented.  The consolidated 
financial statements of PGG Wrightson Limited as at and for the year ended 30 June 2009 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries 
(together referred to as the “Group”)  and the Group’s interest in associates and jointly controlled entities.    
      
The Company is primarily involved in the provision of rural services.        
  

2  BASIS OF PREPARATION          
          
Statement of Compliance          
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with New Zealand Generally Accepted Accounting Practice  
(“NZ GAAP”).  They comply with the New Zealand equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (“NZ IFRS”) and other 
applicable Financial Reporting Standards as applicable for profit orientated entities.  The financial statements comply with International 
Financial Reporting Standards.          
          
These statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 27 August 2009.       
   
Basis of Measurement          
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following:     
- derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value
- financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value      
- available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value
- biological assets are measured at fair value less point-of-sale costs
- assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell.   
      
Functional and Presentation Currency          
These financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars ($), which is the Group’s functional currency. All financial information is 
presented in New Zealand dollars and has been rounded to the nearest thousand.       
   
Use of Estimates and Judgements          
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application  
of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates 
and assumptions.          
          
Estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the 
estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.         
 
In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies, that have 
the most significant effects on the amount recognised in the financial statements, include:      
    
- Measurement of recoverable amounts of cash generating units
- Estimation of average loan lives used to defer fees
- Measurement of defined benefit obligations         
- Fund management performance fee accrual         
- Valuation of financial instruments         
- Business combinations         
- Provisions and contingencies         
- Valuation of Seeds inventory         
- Carrying value of finance receivables         
- Measurement of share based payments         

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE

3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES          

Unless otherwise stated, the accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated 
financial statements, and have been applied consistently by Group entities.       
   
(A)  BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION          
Subsidiaries          
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies 
of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are taken into 
account. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences 
until the date that control ceases.          
          
Associates           
Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over the financial and operating policies. 
Associates are accounted for using the equity method. The consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of the income and 
expenses of equity accounted investees, after adjustments to align the accounting policies with those of the Group, from the date that 
significant influence starts.  Where the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an equity accounted investee, the carrying amount of 
that interest (including any long-term investments) is reduced to nil and the recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent 
that the Group has an obligation or has made payments on behalf of the investee.       
   
Transactions Eliminated on Consolidation         
Intra-group balances, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the 
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity accounted investees are eliminated against the 
investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but 
only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.         
 
(B)  REVENUE RECOGNITION          
Recognition of Revenue          
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably 
measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised.     
     
Sales Revenue          
Sales revenue comprises the sale value of transactions where the Group acts as a principal and the commission for transactions where the 
Group acts as an agent. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of 
returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have 
been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods can be estimated 
reliably, and there is no continuing management involvement with the goods.       
   
Interest and Fee Income          
Interest income is accrued on a daily basis on the principal outstanding. Other fees (other than fees relating to financial instruments) are 
brought to account when charged to customers.          

Irrigation Contracts          
The revenue on work-in-progress is recognised when it can be estimated reliably.  The percentage of completion method is used to 
determine the appropriate amount to recognise in each year.  The full amount of any anticipated loss, including that relating to work on the 
contract, is recognised as soon as it is foreseen.          

Investment Income          
Investment income is recognised when earned.  Dividends are recognised when received, or accrued when declared and approved for 
distribution prior to balance date.          
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3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Interest and Similar Income and Expense         
For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income or expense is recorded at the effective interest rate, which is the 
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter 
period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability.  The calculation takes into account all 
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) and includes any fees or incremental costs that are directly 
attributable to the instrument and are an integral part of the effective interest rate, but not future credit losses.      
      
Once the recorded value of a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been reduced due to an impairment loss,  
interest income continues to be recognised using the original effective interest rate applied to the new carrying amount.   
       
The Group recognises interest revenue, management fees, and establishment fees on an accruals basis when the services are rendered using 
the effective interest rate method.          
          
Fee and Commission Income          
The Group earns fee and commission income from a diverse range of services it provides to customers.  Fee income can be divided into the 
following two categories:          
- Fee income earned from services that are provided over a certain period of time.  Fees earned for the provision of services over a period 

of time are accrued over that period.  Loan commitment fees for loans that are likely to be drawn down and other credit related fees are 
deferred (together with any incremental costs) and recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest rate on the loan.   
      

- Discharge fees and deferred establishment fees are received by the Group upon early termination of mortgage loans.  On a consolidated 
basis these are treated as a recoupment of the transaction costs spent by the Group in establishing the mortgage loans.  These fees form 
part of the interest effective yield on the loans and are accrued and recognised in the Income Statement over the weighted average 
expected life of the mortgage loans using the effective interest method.       
  

Fee Income from Providing Transaction Services          
Fees arising from negotiating or participating in the negotiation of a transaction for a third party are recognised on completion of 
the underlying transactions. Fees or components of the fees that are linked to certain performance are recognised after fulfilling the 
corresponding criteria.          
          
(C)  FOREIGN CURRENCIES          
Foreign Currency Transactions          
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of the group entities at the exchange rates at the 
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the 
functional currency at that date. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference between amortised cost in the 
functional currency at the beginning of the period, adjusted for effective interest and payments during the period, and the amortised cost in 
foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the period.        
   
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are retranslated to the functional 
currency at the exchange rate at the date that fair value was determined. Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognised 
in profit or loss.          
          
Foreign Operations          
The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on acquisition, are translated to New 
Zealand dollars at the exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign operations are translated to New Zealand 
dollars at exchange rates at the date of the transactions.         
 
Foreign currency differences are recognised in the Foreign Currency Translation Reserve (“FCTR”). When a foreign operation is disposed of, in 
part or in full, the relevant amount in the FCTR is transferred to profit or loss.       
   
          

3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

(D)  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS          
Non-derivative Financial Instruments          
Non-derivative financial instruments comprise investments in equity and debt securities, finance receivables, trade and other receivables, 
cash and cash equivalents, intercompany advances, loans and borrowings and trade and other payables. Non-derivative financial instruments 
are recognised initially at fair value plus, for instruments not at fair value through profit or loss, any directly attributable transaction costs. 
Subsequent to initial recognition non-derivative financial instruments are measured as set out below.     
     
A financial instrument is recognised if the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are 
derecognised if the Group is no longer entitled to cash flows generated by the asset, or if the Group transfers the financial asset to another 
party without retaining control or substantially all risks and rewards of the asset. Financial instruments arising from the normal course of 
business are recognised at the trade date, i.e. the date that the Group commits to the purchase or sale of the asset. Financial liabilities are 
derecognised if the obligations of the Group lapse, expire, are discharged or cancelled.      
    
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short term highly liquid investments with maturities 
of three months or less. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are 
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.         
 
Held-to-maturity Investments           
If the Group has the positive intent and ability to hold debt securities to maturity, then they are classified as held-to-maturity. Subsequent 
to initial recognition, held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment 
losses to date.          
          
Instruments at Fair Value through Profit or Loss         
An instrument is classified at fair value through profit or loss if it is held for trading or is designated as fair value through profit and loss upon 
initial recognition. Financial instruments are designated at fair value through profit or loss if the Group manages such investments and makes 
purchase and sale decisions based on their fair value. Upon initial recognition, attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss 
when incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, and 
changes therein are recognised in profit or loss.          

Loans and Receivables          
Subsequent to initial recognition, other non-derivative financial assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, 
less any impairment losses.          
          
Derivative Financial Instruments          
The Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign currency risks arising from operational, 
financing and investment activities. In accordance with Treasury policy, the Group does not hold or issue derivative instruments for trading 
purposes. However, derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are accounted for as trading instruments.     
      
Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value and transaction costs are expensed immediately. Subsequent to 
initial recognition, derivative financial instruments are stated at fair value. The gain or loss on re-measurement to fair value is recognised 
immediately in profit or loss.   However, where derivatives qualify for hedge accounting, recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends on 
the nature of the hedging relationship (see below).          

Cash Flow Hedges          
Changes in the fair value of the derivative hedging instrument designated as a cash flow hedge are recognised directly in equity to the extent 
that the hedge is effective.  To the extent that the hedge is ineffective, changes in fair value are recognised in profit or loss.   
       
If the hedging instrument no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, then hedge 
accounting is discontinued prospectively.  The cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity remains there until the forecast 
transaction occurs.  When the hedged item is a non-financial asset, the amount recognised in equity is transferred to the carrying amount 
of the asset when it is recognised.  In other cases the amount recognised in equity is transferred to profit or loss in the same period that the 
hedged item affects profit or loss.          
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3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Investments in Equity Securities          
Investments in equity securities held by the Group are classified as available-for-sale or at fair value through profit or loss, except for 
investments in equity securities of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures which are measured at cost in the separate financial statements 
of the Company. The fair value of equity investments classified as available-for-sale and at fair value through profit or loss is the weighted 
average share price of the last million shares traded prior to balance date.        
  
Investments in Debt Securities          
Investments in debt securities held by the Group are classified as held-to-maturity.       
   
Trade and Other Receivables          
Trade and other receivables are stated at their amortised cost less impairment losses.       
   
Interest-bearing Borrowings          
Interest-bearing borrowings are classified as other non-derivative financial instruments.      
    
Trade and Other Payables          
Trade and other payables are stated at cost.          

Share Capital          
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognised as a deduction from equity.    
      
Repurchase of Share Capital          
When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased, the amount of the consideration paid, including directly attributable costs, is 
recognised as a deduction from equity. These repurchased shares are cancelled.       
   
Borrowing Costs          
Borrowing costs are expensed as they are incurred.          

         
Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment.      
     
Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost 
of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use, and 
the cost of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located. Purchased software that is integral to the 
functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.       
   
When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major 
components) of property, plant and equipment.          

Subsequent Costs          
The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that 
the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of day-to-day 
servicing of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.       
   
Depreciation          
Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each item of property, plant and 
equipment with the exception of motor vehicles where depreciation is recognised on a diminishing value basis. Leased assets are depreciated 
over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives. Land is not depreciated. The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative 
periods are as follows:          
- Buildings   50 years    
- Plant and machinery  3 to 40 years    
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at reporting date.      
    

3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

(F)  INTANGIBLE ASSETS          
Computer Software          
Computer software is a finite life intangible and is recorded at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment. Amortisation is charged 
on a straight line basis over an estimated useful life between 3 and 10 years. The estimated useful life and amortisation method is reviewed 
at the end of each annual reporting period.           

Goodwill          
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets,  
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree.           

Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment loss with respect to goodwill is not reversed. With respect to 
equity accounted investees, the carrying amount of goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the investment.    
      
Research and Development          
The principal research and development activities are in the development of systems, processes and new seed cultivars.   
       
Research expenditure on the development of new systems and processes is recognised in the income statement as incurred. Development 
activities involve a plan or design for the production of new or substantially improved products and processes. Development expenditure 
is capitalised only if development costs can be measured reliably, the product or process is technically and commercially feasible, future 
economic benefits are probable, and the Group intends to and has sufficient resources to complete development and to use or sell the asset. 
The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct labour and overhead costs that are directly attributable to preparing the 
asset for its intended use. Other development expenditure is recognised in the income statement when incurred.    
      
Capitalised development expenditure is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.   
       
Research and development expenditure on the development of new seed cultivars is recognised in profit and loss as incurred.  Development 
costs of seed cultivars are substantially indistinguishable from the cultivar research costs.      
    
(G)  LEASING COMMITMENTS          
Leases in terms of which the Group assumes substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership are classed as finance leases. Upon 
initial recognition the leased asset is measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value or the present value of the minimum lease 
payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset.  
        
Other leases are operating leases and are not recognised on the balance sheet.        
   
(H)  INVENTORIES           
Stock on Hand          
Raw materials and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value.  Cost is determined on a first in, first out basis, and, 
in the case of manufactured goods, includes direct materials, labour and production overheads.     
     
Work in Progress          
Work in Progress is stated at cost plus the profit recognised to date, less amounts invoiced to customers.  Costs include all expenses directly 
related to specific contracts.          

Wholesale Seeds          
Wholesale seeds inventory is stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value and comprises costs of purchase and other direct costs 
incurred to bring the inventory to its present location and condition.          
  
(I)  BIOLOGICAL ASSETS          
Biological assets are measured at fair value less point-of-sale costs, with any change therein recognised in profit or loss. Point-of-sale costs 
include all costs that would be necessary to sell the assets.          
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3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

(J)  IMPAIRMENT          
The carrying value of the Group’s assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any objective evidence of 
impairment. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.  Impairment losses directly 
reduce the carrying value of assets and are recognised in the income statement.       
   
Impairment of Equity Instruments          
The Group assesses at each balance date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of assets is impaired. In the 
case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is 
considered in determining whether the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative 
loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset 
previously recognised in the Income Statement - is removed from equity and recognised in the income statement.    
      
Impairment of Debt Instruments and Receivables        
Loans and receivables are considered past due when they have been operated by the counterparty out of key terms, the facility has 
expired, and in managements view there is no possibility of the counterparty operating the facility within key terms.  When forming a view 
management considers the counterparty’s ability to pay, the level of security and the risk of loss     
     
Accounts receivable and finance receivables include accrued interest and are stated at estimated net realisable value after allowing for a 
provision for doubtful debts. Specific provisions are maintained to cover identified doubtful debts.     
     
The recoverable amount of the Group’s investments in held-to-maturity debt instruments and receivables carried at amortised cost is 
calculated as the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate 
computed at initial recognition of these financial assets). Receivables with short duration are not discounted.    
      
Impairment losses on an individual basis are determined by an evaluation of the exposures on an instrument by instrument basis.  
All individual instruments that are considered significant are subject to this approach.      
    
All known losses are expensed in the period in which it becomes apparent that the receivables are not collectable.    
      
Non-financial Assets          
The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, other than biological assets, inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed at 
each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then the recoverable amount of 
the asset is estimated. For goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite lives, the recoverable amount is estimated at each reporting date. 
         
An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or the cash-generating unit to which it relates, exceeds the recoverable 
amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that generates cash flows that are largely independent from other 
assets and groups. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised with respect to cash-generating units are 
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units, then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in 
the unit on a pro rata basis. 
         
The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing 
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or unit.       
   
An impairment loss with respect to goodwill is not reversed.  With respect to other assets losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at 
each reporting date for any indications that the loss may have decreased or no longer exist. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been 
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is only reversed to the extent that the carrying 
value of the asset does not exceed the carrying value that the asset would have had, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment 
loss had been recognised.          
          

3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

         
The Group’s net obligation with respect to defined benefit pension plans is calculated by estimating the future benefit that employees 
have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and any 
unrecognised past service costs and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted. The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on bonds 
that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Group’s obligations. The calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the 
projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a benefit to the Group, the recognised asset is limited to the lower of the net 
assets of the plan or the current value of the contributions holiday that is expected to be generated. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised 
directly in equity. 
         
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and expensed as the related service is provided. A provision 
is recognised for the amount of outstanding short-term benefits at each reporting date.      
    
Provisions made with respect to employee benefits which are not expected to be settled within twelve months are measured as the present 
value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made by the Group with respect to services provided by employees up to reporting date. 
         

         
The grant date fair value of options granted to employees is recognised as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, 
over the period in which the employees become unconditionally entitled to the options. The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to 
reflect the actual number of share options that vest.          

(M)  DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS          
A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s business that represents a separate major line of business or geographical area 
of operations that has been disposed of or is held for sale, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.  Classification as a 
discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be classified as held for sale, if earlier.  When an 
operation is classified as a discontinued operation, the comparative income statement is restated as if the operation had been discontinued 
from the start of the comparative period.          
          
(N)  INCOME TAX          
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred taxation and is recognised in the income statement except to the extent that it relates 
to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised directly in equity. Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable 
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable with respect 
to previous periods.          
Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for:   
       
- the initial recognition of goodwill         
- differences relating to subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the
     foreseeable future.         
          
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws 
that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date.        
  
A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which temporary 
differences can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable 
that the related tax benefit will be recognised.          

(O)  EARNINGS PER SHARE          
The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit 
or loss attributable to shareholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by 
adjusting the number of shares outstanding to include the effects of all dilutive potential shares.      
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3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

(P)  DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUES          
A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for both financial and non-financial 
assets and liabilities. Fair values have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the following methods.   
Where applicable, further information about the assumptions made is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.   
       
Property, Plant and Equipment          
The fair value of property, plant and equipment recognised as a result of a business combination is based on market values. The market value 
of property is the estimated amount for which the property could be exchanged on the date of valuation between a willing buyer and a 
willing seller in an arm’s length transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without 
compulsion. The market value of items of plant, equipment, fixtures and fittings is based on the quoted market prices for similar items.  
        
Intangible Assets          
The fair value of intangible assets acquired on a business combination is based on the discounted cash flows expected to be derived from the 
use and eventual sale of the assets.          
          
Biological Assets          
The fair value of biological assets is based on the market price of the asset at the reporting date. This is determined by an independent 
external valuer. Stock counts of livestock quantities are performed by an independent party at each reporting date.    
      
Investments in equity and debt securities         
The fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sale financial assets 
is determined by reference to the average of the last one million trades prior to the reporting date.  The fair value of held-to-maturity 
investments is determined for disclosure purposes only.  Other investments are held at historical cost.     
     
Trade and Other Receivables          
The fair value of trade and other receivables is estimated as the present value of future cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest 
at the reporting date.          
          
Derivatives          
The fair value of forward exchange contracts is based on their listed market price, if available. If a listed market price is not available, then 
fair value is estimated by discounting the difference between the contractual forward price and the current forward price for the residual 
maturity of the contract using a risk-free interest rate based on government bonds.       
   
The fair value of interest rate swaps is based on broker quotes. These quotes are tested for reasonableness by discounting estimated future 
cash flows based on the terms and maturity of each contract using market interest rates for a similar instrument at the reporting date.  
        
Non-derivative Financial Instruments          
Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated based on the present value of future principal and interest cash flows, 
discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date. For finance leases, the market rate of interest is determined by reference to 
similar lease agreements.          
          

        
The statement of cash flows has been prepared using the direct approach modified by the netting of certain items as disclosed below.  
        
Deposits received less withdrawals are netted as the cash flows are received and disbursed on behalf of customers and reflect the activities of 
the customers rather than those of the Company.          

          

3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

    
A number of new standards and interpretations are not yet effective for the year ended 30 June 2009, and have not been applied in 
preparing these consolidated financial statements:          

 -  NZ IFRS 8 Operating Segments addresses the identification and disclosure of segments in the financial statements. The standard requires 
entities to disclose segments in the manner that they are disclosed to decision making members of the entity. NZ IFRS 8 will become 
mandatory for the Group’s 2010 financial statements and is expected to have little impact on the financial statements as segments are 
already reported in this manner.

         
 -  NZ IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (revised) addresses the naming of financial statements and the presentation of changes 

in equity. It also includes changes to the way income tax expenses are disclosed. NZ IAS 1 will become mandatory for the Group’s 2010 
financial statements and is expected to have minimal impact on the financial statements.      
   

 -  NZ IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts - Amendments addresses the reporting of insurance contracts. NZ IFRS 4 will become mandatory for the 
Group’s 2010 financial statements and is expected to have no impact on the financial statements as the Group does not issue insurance 
contracts.

         
 -  NZ IAS 23 Borrowing Costs (revised) removes the option to expense borrowing costs of assets under construction. NZ IAS 23 will become 

mandatory for the Group’s 2010 financial statements and is expected to have no impact on the financial statements.   
      

 -  NZ IFRS 2 Share-based Payment - Group cash-settled share-based payment transactions.  Revisions to this standard clarify vesting 
conditions and require attribution of group share-based payment transactions to the entity that receives the goods or services.  These 
revisions will become effective for the 2011 Group financial statements and are expected to have no impact.    
     

 -  NZ IFRS 7 Improve Disclosure about Financial Instruments.  This standard has been amended to enhance disclosure around fair value 
measurements relating to financial instruments, primarily around the inputs to the valuation process.  Amendments are also made to the 
disclosures around liquidity risk.  All amendments become effective in the Group’s 2010 financial statements and are expected to have 
minimal impact. 

        
 -  Revisions to NZ IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (amended)  and NZIFRS 3 Business Combinations (revised) - both 

address issues surrounding control of subsidiaries.  These revisions become mandatory for the Group’s 2010 financial statements and are 
expected to have minimal, if any, impact. 

        
 -  NZ IAS 39 Eligible Hedged Items and NZ IAS 39 Embedded Derivatives.  Two amendments to NZ IAS 39 have been approved and become 

effective for the Group’s 2010 financial statements.  The first amendment clarifies the designation of hedges where only one side of a risk 
is hedged, and how inflation in hedged items is designated.  The second amendment relates to the separation of embedded derivatives on 
reclassification of hybrid financial instruments.  Neither amendment is expected to have any impact on the Group financial statements.  
      

(S)  SEGMENT REPORTING          
A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing related products or services (business segment), 
or in providing products or services within a particular economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards 
that are different from those of other segments.   The Group’s primary format for segment reporting is based on business segments.  
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4  SEGMENT REPORTING          
          
Segment information is presented with respect to the Group’s business and geographical segments.  The primary format, business segments, 
is based on the Group’s management and internal reporting structure.        
  
Inter-segment pricing is determined on an arm’s length basis.         
 
Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable 
basis.  Unallocated items comprise mainly goodwill, loans and borrowings and related expenses, corporate assets (primarily the Company’s 
head office) and head office expenses, and income tax assets and liabilities.       
   
Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets 
other than goodwill.          
          

          
The Group operates in the following business segments, its primary business being the supply of products and services to the rural sector.  
        
-  Customer Services, including:          
  -     Rural merchandise          
  -     Irrigation and pumping services          
  -     Wool procurement, warehousing, marketing and export (sold 1 July 2008)        
  -     Livestock marketing and supply  
        
-  Seed, Grain and Nutrition including farm consultancy and supply of seeds, grains and feed supplements     
     
-  Financial Services including farm finance, fund management, real estate and insurance services      
    
-  Corporate Services including other unallocated items          

-  South America          
          
(B) GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS          
The Group operates predominantly in New Zealand with some operations in Australia and South America.      
      
The Australian and South American business units facilitate the export sales and services of New Zealand operations in addition to their own 
seed trading operations.  Inter-segment pricing is determined on an arm’s length basis.      
          
In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments, segment revenue is based on the geographical location of customers.  
Segment assets are based on the geographical location of the assets.        
  

 

Group 2009

Total segment revenue    777,154   399,537   94,025   (33,884)  95,567   1,332,399   12,311   1,320,088 

Intersegment revenue    -   39,442   -   -   -   39,442   -   39,442 

Total external revenues    777,154   360,095   94,025   (33,884)  95,567   1,292,957   12,311   1,280,646 

Segment earnings before interest and tax  31,180   41,576   14,722   (21,438)  4,128   70,168   (4,414)  74,582 

Equity earnings of associates         (1,380)  -   (1,380)

Non operating items         (41,118)  (1,699)  (39,419)

Fair value adjustments         (50,421)  (2,437)  (47,984)

Interest         (32,897)  (1,474)  (31,423)

Income tax expense         (10,796)  2,341   (13,137)

Profit for the year         (66,444)  (7,683)  (58,761)

Segment assets    188,559   267,880   608,452   396,278   79,709   1,540,878   4,755   1,536,123 

Equity accounted investees    3,150   56   -   -   62   3,268   -   3,268 

Total assets    191,709   267,936   608,452   396,278   79,771   1,544,146   4,755   1,539,391 

Segment liabilities    174,986   221,769   531,875   154,775   69,820   1,153,225   3,191   1,150,034 

Total liabilities    174,986   221,769   531,875   154,775   69,820   1,153,225   3,191   1,150,034 

Capital expenditure    21,063   7,177   1,781   -   791   30,812   -   30,812 

Depreciation    2,475   1,539   325   1,394   476   6,209   165   6,044 

Amortisation/impairment of intangible assets   38   64   370   74   -   546   -   546 

CUSTOMER
SERVICES

$000

SEED, GRAIN & 
NUTRITION

$000

FINANCIAL
SERVICES

$000

CORPORATE
SERVICES

$000

SOUTH
AMERICA

$000
TOTAL

$000

LESS 
DISCONTINUED 

OPERATIONS
$000

CONTIUING 
OPERATIONS

$000

 

Group 2008

Total segment revenue    819,485   356,737   117,532   2,720   55,644   1,352,118   116,739   1,235,379 

Intersegment revenue    -   56,818   -   -   -   56,818   -   56,818 

Total external revenues    819,485   299,919   117,532   2,720   55,644   1,295,300   116,739   1,178,561 

Segment earnings before interest and tax  39,283   35,436   22,497   (16,634)  2,499   83,081   5,270   77,811 

Equity earnings of associates         831   -   831 

Non operating items         20,343   909   19,434 

Fair value adjustments         17,484   1   17,483 

Interest         (25,335)  (2,729)  (22,606)

Income tax expense         (23,198)  (890)  (22,308)

Profit for the year         73,206   2,561   70,645 

Segment assets    561,086   84,285   505,116   289,216   28,641   1,468,344   30,958   1,437,386 

Equity accounted investees    2,935   6   -   -   200   3,141   -   3,141 

Total assets    564,021   84,291   505,116   289,216   28,841   1,471,485   30,958   1,440,527 

Segment liabilities    483,340   31,420   452,475   -   23,749   990,984   20,900   970,084 

Total liabilities    483,340   31,420   452,475   -   23,749   990,984   20,900   970,084 

Capital expenditure    10,437   9,249   629   -   1,895   22,210   159   22,051 

Depreciation    3,657   1,407   167   -   454   5,685   137   5,548 

Amortisation/impairment of intangible assets  214   51   112   -   -   377   -   377 

CUSTOMER
SERVICES

$000

SEED, GRAIN & 
NUTRITION

$000

FINANCIAL
SERVICES

$000

CORPORATE
SERVICES

$000

SOUTH
AMERICA

$000
TOTAL

$000

LESS 
DISCONTINUED 

OPERATION
$000

CONTIUING 
OPERATIONS

$000

4  SEGMENT REPORTING  (CONTINUED) 
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(D) GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENT INFORMATION 

Revenue derived from outside the Group     

 New Zealand  1,117,978   1,069,504 

 Australia   67,101   57,054 

 South America  95,567   52,003 

Total revenue derived from outside the Group  1,280,646   1,178,561 

      

Segment assets     

 New Zealand  1,416,713   1,404,730 

 Australia  51,885   37,914 

 South America  75,548   28,841 

Total assets   1,544,146   1,471,485 

      

Capital expenditure     

 New Zealand  28,167   12,553 

 Australia  1,854   7,762 

 South America   791   1,895 

Total capital expenditure  30,812   22,210 

5   OPERATING REVENUE

Group

Sales      1,097,534   1,058,740   12,311   19,372   1,109,845   1,078,112 

Commissions      88,649   35,845   -   97,367   88,649   133,212 

Construction contract revenue      27,961   27,317   -   -   27,961   27,317 

NZFSU management fee      4,216   3,437   -   -   4,216   3,437 

Interest revenue on finance receivables   62,286   53,222   -   -   62,286   53,222 

Total operating revenue      1,280,646   1,178,561   12,311   116,739   1,292,957   1,295,300 

Company

Sales      684,581   695,824   10,597   16,131   695,178   711,955 

Commissions      85,836   41,589   -   88,934   85,836   130,523 

Construction contract revenue      27,961   27,317   -   -   27,961   27,317 

Interest revenue on finance receivables   4,150   3,746   -   -   4,150   3,746 

Total operating revenue      802,528   768,476   10,597   105,065   813,125   873,541 

CONTINUING 

OPERATIONS
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$000
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$000
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6  OPERATING EXPENSES

Operating expenses include the following items:  

Audit of financial statements - KPMG        485   265   303   200 

Other audit-related services for NZIFRS transition and 

    accounting opinions paid to KPMG        13   72   12   - 

Depreciation - Buildings        429   681   372   542 

Depreciation - Plant and equipment        5,615   5,004   3,602   3,114 

Directors’ fees        605   648   605   648 

Donations        11   1   -   - 

Doubtful debts - (decrease)/increase in provision for 

    doubtful debts      18  2,231   (369)  (667)  (788)

Doubtful debts - bad debts written off        2,206   784   1,945   382 

Foreign currency (profits)/losses        212   (93)  (664)  - 

Impairment of intangible assets - software        319   377   115   130 

Rental and operating lease costs         24,366   26,999   17,625   17,524 

Research and development costs         2,988   1,904   68   (14,323)

Other expenses        189,477   172,030   130,216   139,994 

         228,957   208,303   153,532   147,423 

Dividend income        142   301   142   481 

Other investment income        (47)  -   -   - 

         95   301   142   481 
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SEE NOTE (26)

2009     

Ownership  49% 50% 50% 50% 50% 51% 50% 50% 

          

Current assets   26,896   1,812   402   2,272   332   9,697   6,211   42   47,664 

Non current assets   30,087   974   -   73   -   594   3,434   600   35,762 

Total assets   56,983   2,786   402   2,345   332   10,291   9,645   642   83,426 

          

Current liabilities   8,306   2,651   257   1,413   274   4,151   2,024   151   19,228 

Non current liabilities   18,469   412   -   1,001   -   5,196   -   -   25,078 

Total liabilities   26,775   3,064   257   2,414   274   9,347   2,024   151   44,306 

          

Revenues   102,137   22,469   2,002   3,166   297   20,089   101,933   187   252,280 

Expenses   (106,066)  (22,846)  (1,910)  (3,134)  (298)  (20,447)  (99,571)  (328)  (254,600)

Profit/(Loss)   (3,929)  (378)  92   32   (1)  (358)  2,362   (141)  (2,320)

PGW Share   (1,806)  (100)  66   45   -   (226)  702   (61)  (1,380)  

        

2008          

Ownership  0% 0% 0% 50% 50% 51% 50% 50% 

          

Current assets   -   -   -   3,246   75   7,503   7,596   145   18,565 

Non current assets   -   -   -   73   -   502   1,817   510   2,902 

Total assets   -   -   -   3,319   75   8,005   9,413   655   21,467 

          

Current liabilities   -   -   -   2,399   3   6,537   2,510   23   11,472 

Non current liabilities   -   -   -   1,022   -   -   -   -   1,022 

Total liabilities   -   -   -   3,421   3   6,537   2,510   23   12,494 

          

Revenues   -   -   -   3,139   253   17,614   94,243   297   115,546 

Expenses   -   -   -   (3,135)  (257)  (17,241)  (93,006)  (336)  (113,975)

Profit/(Loss)   -   -   -   4   (4)  373   1,237   (39)  1,571 

PGW Share   -   -   -   2   (1)  187   643   -   831 

WOOL
 PARTNERS

INTERNATIONAL 
LIMITED 

(ASSOCIATE)
$000

NORTHFUELS
LIMITED

(JOINT 
VENTURE)

$000

AGRITRANZ
LIMITED

(JOINT 
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$000
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LIMITED
(JOINT 
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$000

LIMITED
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$000

ALFALFARES
S.R.L

(ASSOCIATE)
$000

THE
NEW ZEALAND

MERINO

LIMITED
(ASSOCIATE)

$000

KELSO
WRIGHTSON

(2004) LIMITED
(ASSOCIATE)

$000
TOTAL

$000

9   NON OPERATING ITEMS 

Silver Fern Farms due diligence and settlement costs        (49,600)  -   (49,600)  - 

Capital gains on sale of businesses, property plant and equipment   17,564   7,132   17,422   1,668 

NZFSU performance fee        -   17,782   -   - 

Defined benefit superannuation plan      25  501   302   501   302 

Restructuring        (2,614)  (1,839)  (2,136)  (1,942)

Write off goodwill on closure of Australian Real Estate and 

  Livestock operation        (227)  -   -   - 

Management fee from subsidiaries      40  -   -   41,000   71,000 

Other non operating items        (5,043)  (3,943)  (5,269)  (3,788)

            (39,419)  19,434   1,918   67,240 

GROUP

2009

$000NOTE

GROUP

2008

$000

2009

$000

2008

$000

10   FAIR VALUE ADJUSTMENTS 

Continuing Operations

Gain/(loss) on investments        (40,880)  18,856   -   (32)

Assets held for sale        (3,200)  -   (3,200)  - 

Derivatives not in qualifying hedge relationships        (4,001)  (1,373)  (4,907)  (1,618)

Risk share loan transfers        97   -   -   - 

            (47,984)  17,483   (8,107)  (1,650)

Discontinued Operations          

Biological assets        (437)  1   (437)  1 

Lease commitment        (2,000)  -   (2,000)  - 

            (2,437)  1   (2,437)  1 

GROUP

2009

$000

GROUP

2008

$000

2009

$000

2008

$000

11   INTEREST - FINANCE INCOME AND EXPENSE  

Finance income contains the following items:          

  Interest earned on interest rate swaps         -   2,056   -   2,056 

  Interest received from Group companies         -   -   22,592   3,181 

  Other interest income         2,504   1,391   809   757 

Finance income        2,504   3,447   23,401   5,994 

          

Interest funding expense          

  Interest on interest rate swaps         (3,635)  -   (5,250)  - 

  Interest on bank loans and overdrafts         (27,468)  (27,651)  (26,431)  (26,746)

  Bank Facility Fees         (4,298)  (1,131)  (4,298)  (1,140)

Finance expense        (35,401)  (28,782)  (35,979)  (27,886)

          

Less finance expenses from discontinued operations        1,474   2,729   1,303   1,541 

Net interest and finance costs        (31,423)  (22,606)  (11,275)  (20,351)

GROUP

2009

$000

GROUP

2008

$000

2009

$000

2008

$000
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Income tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate 30.0%  (15,992) 33.0%  31,520  30.0%  (2,337) 33.0%  24,829 

Effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdictions -1.6%  843  0.4%  373  0.0%  -  -0.1%  (69)

Non-deductible expenses -58.9%  31,384  1.4%  1,305  -228.9%  17,832  1.5%  1,117 

Tax exempt income 11.4%  (6,082) -11.3%  (10,783) 78.1%  (6,082) -34.9%  (26,224)

Under/(over) provided in prior years -5.6%  2,983  -0.1%  (107) -40.1%  3,121  0.0%  - 

     -24.6%  13,136  23.4%  22,308  -160.9%  12,534  -0.5%  (347) 
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12   INCOME TAX EXPENSE 

Current tax expense          

Current year        6,956   21,749   7,357   (1,047)

Tax on discontinued operations        2,341   (890)  1,184   (566)

Adjustments for prior years        2,983   (107)  3,121   - 

            12,280   20,752   11,662   (1,613)

Deferred tax expense          

Origination and reversal of temporary differences        856   1,100   872   820 

Effect of change in Company tax rate on deferred tax asset      -   456   -   446 

Total income tax expense        13,136   22,308   12,534   (347)

          

Profit for the year        (66,444)  73,206   (20,323)  75,585 

Total income tax expense        13,136   22,308   12,534   (347)

Profit excluding income tax        (53,308)  95,514   (7,789)  75,238 

Income tax recognised directly in equity      

Derivatives        -   459   -   - 

Total income tax recognised directly in equity        -   459   -   - 

          

Imputation credits          

Balance as at 1 July        2,960   (3,350)  2,960   (3,350)

Taxation paid (net of refunds)        9,200   17,913   9,200   17,913 

Imputation credits/RWT attached to dividends received        288   -   288   - 

Transfers, refunds and adjustments        -   (1,000)  -   (1,000)

Imputation credits attached to dividends paid        (17,698)  (10,603)  (17,698)  (10,603)

Balance as at 30 June        (5,250)  2,960   (5,250)  2,960 

13   DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS           

At 30 June 2009 PGG Wrightson exited its Friesian live export business under it’s existing business model.  The specialised Taurindicus 
business has been retained to reflect the intellectual property investment in this business.    
      
In February 2009 the Australian Livestock and Real Estate activities were closed.  No assets or liabilities remain at 30 June 2009.  
          
PGG Wrightson entered into a transaction with a new wool growers co-operative on 1 July 2008, Wool Grower Holdings Limited,  
to form The Wool Company Limited. This joint venture is owned 50% by Wool Grower Holdings Limited and 50% by PGG Wrightson.  
PGG Wrightson’s 50% will dilute as other industry participants join the new venture.  The Group classified its wool operation as a 
discontinued operation and held for sale in the 2008 comparatives.      
            

GROUP

2009

$000

GROUP

2008

$000

2009

$000

2008

$000

          

Profits attributable to the discontinued operation were as follows:      

Results of discontinued operations      

Revenue         12,311   116,739   10,597   105,065 

Expenses        (22,335)  (114,197)  (16,545)  (103,350)

Results from operating activities        (10,024)  2,542   (5,948)  1,715 

Income tax expense        2,341   (890)  1,184   (566)

Results from operating activities, net of income tax        (7,683)  1,652   (4,764)  1,149 

Gain on sale of discontinued operation        -   909   -   778 

Profit/(loss) for the year        (7,683)  2,561   (4,764)  1,927 

Basic and diluted earnings per share (New Zealand dollars)     -0.03 0.01 -0.02 0.01

          

Cash flows from discontinued operations          

Net cash from operating activities        (1,565)  3,024   (1,565)  1,229 

Net cash from/(used in) discontinued operation        (1,565)  3,024   (1,565)  1,229 

          

Effect of disposal on the financial position of the Group        

Property, plant and equipment        (248)  (2,408)  (248)  - 

Intangibles        -   (83)  -   - 

Goodwill        -   (250)  -   - 

Inventories and biological assets        (815)  (11,358)  (815)  - 

Trade and other receivables        (3,692)  (16,859)  (3,692)  - 

Cash and cash equivalents        -   16,123   -   - 

Trade and other payables        3,191   4,212   10,702   - 

Income tax        -   565   -   - 

Net identifiable assets and liabilities        (1,564)  (10,058)  5,947   - 
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14   EARNINGS PER SHARE AND NET TANGIBLE ASSETS      
    
Basic earnings per share          
The calculation of basic earnings per share at 30 June 2009 was based on the profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary shareholders of 
$(66,444,000) (2008: profit $73,206,000) by the weighted average number of shares, 296,851,539 (2008: 286,766,181) on issue.  
               
  
Diluted earnings per share          
There are no dilutive shares or options (2008: Nil). 
         
On 3 October 2008 the Group issued 12,638,542 new ordinary shares under the PGG Wrightson Limited distribution plan as a bonus 
issue. Shareholders could elect to have the Group buy back shares issued to them under the plan at $2.5193 each, and 9,490,297 were 
repurchased at a cost of $23,908,905.  All of the repurchased shares have been cancelled.  This has resulted in an additional 3,148,245 
shares being issued and the shareholding of 292,472,722 ordinary shares as at 31 December 2008.    
      
On 1 April 2009 the Group issued 13,342,894 new ordinary shares under the PGG Wrightson Limited distribution plan as a fully imputed 
taxable bonus issue. The buyback option was not offered to shareholders to enable funds to be applied to debt repayment.   
As a result 305,815,616 shares were on issue as at 1 April 2009.      
    
On 24 April 2009 10,000,000 shares were issued to Silver Fern Farms Limited as part settlement of its failed investment transaction.   
As a result 315,815,616 shares were on issue as at 30 June 2009.      
    

Weighted average number of ordinary shares     

Weighted average number of ordinary shares           296,852   286,766 

          

Net tangible assets per security at year end          0.19   0.54 

         

GROUP

2009

$000

GROUP

2008

$000

2009

$000

2008

$000

Cash and cash equivalents        45,999   26,101   32,083   14,758 

Current bank facilities        (526,540)  (174,294)  (453,966)  (194,727)

Term bank facilities        -   (304,000)  -   (164,000)

            (480,541)  (452,193)  (421,883)  (343,969)

15   CASH AND BANK FACILITIES     

The Company has bank facilities of $540 million (2008: $423 million), Group $720 million (2008: $603 million).  The Company has granted 
to ANZ National Bank Limited a general security deed and mortgage over all its assets.  ANZ National Bank Limited holds this security on trust 
firstly for the banking syndicate (ANZ National Bank Limited, Bank of New Zealand Limited and Westpac Banking Corporation Limited) and 
secondly for South Canterbury Finance Limited.
          
The Company bank syndicate facilities include:          
- A term debt facility of $275 million that matures on 30 September 2011.    
- An amortising debt facility of $125 million due to be fully repaid by 31 December 2010.
- A working capital facility of $75 million that matures on 30 April 2010.
- Overdraft and guarantee facilities of $40 million.         
Additionally there is a South Canterbury Finance Limited facility of $25 million that matures on 24 April 2012.   
       
On 27 August the Company finalised and accepted amended facilities with the banking syndicate.  These include:  
- A term debt facility of $197.9 million that matures on 31 August 2012.
- An amortising debt facility of $200 million to be fully repaid by 31 March 2010.
- A working capital facility of $75 million that matures on 31 August 2011.
- Overdraft and guarantee facilities of $40 million.         
The South Canterbury Finance Limited facility of $25 million now matures on 28 February 2013.    
      
The Company and Group have debts of $375,966,000 owing to the bank syndicate and South Canterbury Finance that have been included 
in current bank facilities at 30 June 2009.  These debts had been considered term, however in June 2009 the Company notified the syndicate 
of a potential breach of its financial covenants at 30 June due to adverse trading conditions expected from the last four months of the 
financial year.  On 31 July 2009 a waiver of financial covenants was received from both the banking syndicate and South Canterbury Finance, 
before the finalisation of the Company’s results for the 2009 financial year.  The conditions giving rise to the breach are expected to  
be temporary.          
          
The Group bank facilities include a $120 million Commonwealth Bank of Australia facility and a $60 million Bank of New Zealand Limited 
facility with security over PGG Wrightson Finance Limited assets that ranks equally with bond and debenture investors.  Both facilities mature 
on 24 March 2010.          
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Total assets          1,544,146   1,471,485 

Total liabilities          (1,153,225)  (990,984)

less Intangible assets          (340,133)  (319,606)

less Deferred tax          (3,802)  (3,702)

plus Defined benefit (asset) / liability          13,680   (823)

              60,666   156,370 

2009

$000

2008

$000
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Cash flow hedges of interest rate risk          
The Company uses interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to changes in the market rates of variable and fixed interest rates.  
          
The Company has interest rate swaps, designated in valid hedge relationships, with a notional contract amount of $807.281 million Group 
($479.500 million Company) at 30 June 2009 (2008: $414.24 million Group, $299.75 million Company).   
          
Other derivatives held for risk management          
The Company also uses interest rate swaps, not designated in a qualifying hedge relationship, to manage its exposure to the timing 
mismatch of assets and liabilities.          

GROUP

2009

$000

GROUP

2008

$000

2009

$000

2008

$000

Derivative assets held for risk management        12,812   2,075   5,236   1,780 

Derivative liabilities held for risk management        (13,387)  (3,796)  (10,899)  (2,537)

Net derivatives held for risk management        (575)  (1,721)  (5,663)  (757)

GROUP

2009

$000

GROUP

2008

$000

2009

$000

2008

$000

The profit and loss impact of derivatives not designated  

as qualifying hedges is as follows:          

Income         4,394   970   3,455   966 

Expense         (8,395)  (2,343)  (8,362)  (2,584)

Net income/(loss) from derivative financial instruments        (4,001)  (1,373)  (4,907)  (1,618)

16   DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS     

GROUP

2009

$000NOTE

GROUP

2008

$000

2009

$000

2008

$000

Accounts receivable        159,157   212,772   85,030   146,494 

Less provision for doubtful debts      18  (3,020)  (1,952)  (2,579)  (1,649)

Net accounts receivable        156,137   210,820   82,451   144,845 

Other receivables and prepayments        58,777   32,338   28,272   7,374 

Amounts owing from subsidiaries        -   -   257,722   148,980 

Trade receivables due from related parties        -   -   813   - 

            214,914   243,158   369,258   301,199 

Receivables denominated in currencies other than the functional currency comprise $75,202,000 (2008: $29,531,000) of trade receivables 
denominated in AUD $22,881,000 (2008:$3,178,000), USD $44,879,000 (2008: $24,503,000), EUR $7,266,000 (2008: $1,702,000), GBP 
$176,000 (2008: $Nil) and CAD $Nil (2008: $148,000).          

GROUP

2009

$000

GROUP

2008

$000

2009

$000

2008

$000

18   PROVISION FOR DOUBTFUL DEBTS 

Analysis of movements in provision for doubtful debts  

Balance at beginning of year        (3,281)  (3,650)  (1,649)  (2,437)

Movement in provision        (3,366)  369   (930)  788 

Balance at end of year        (6,647)  (3,281)  (2,579)  (1,649)

          

Consists of:          

Provision against finance receivables        (3,627)  (1,329)  -   - 

Provision against accounts receivables        (3,020)  (1,952)  (2,579)  (1,649)

            (6,647)  (3,281)  (2,579)  (1,649)

GROUP

2009

$000NOTE

GROUP

2008

$000

2009

$000

2008

$000

19   FINANCE RECEIVABLES 

Finance receivables - less than one year        411,840   325,694   4,470   - 

Finance receivables - greater than one year        151,726   182,665   -   4,440 

            563,566   508,359   4,470   4,440 

Less provision for doubtful debts      18  (3,627)  (1,329)  -   - 

            559,939   507,030   4,470   4,440 

Impairment:          

Balance at the beginning of the period        1,329   899   -   - 

Impaired losses recognised in the income statement        2,645   462   -   - 

Amounts written off in the income statement        232   (2)  -   - 

Reversals of amounts previously recognised in the income statement   (579)  (30)  -   - 

Movement in specific provision and bad debts written off       3,627   1,329   -   - 

          

Impairment of receivables due in less than one year:        3,627   1,329   -   - 

Impairment of receivables due in greater than one year:        -   -   -   - 

           3,627   1,329   -   - 

CONTINUED OVER PAGE...
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PGG WRIGHTSON LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

GROUP

2009

$000

GROUP

2008

$000

2009

$000

2008

$000

Asset Quality - Finance Loans and Receivables     

Neither past due nor impaired        522,691   486,704   4,470   4,440 

Individually impaired loans        23,104   1,691   -   - 

Past due loans        17,771   19,964   -   - 

Provision for credit impairment        (3,627)  (1,329)  -   - 

Total carrying amount        559,939   507,030   4,470   4,440 

          

Aging of Past Due but not Impaired          

Past due 1-90 days        972   6,121   -   - 

Past due 91-180 days        5,846   13,758   -   - 

Past due 180-365 days        6,278   59   -   - 

Past due more than 365 days        4,675   26   -   - 

Total past due assets        17,771   19,964   -   - 

          

90 Day Past Due Assets          

Balance at the beginning of the year        15,252   1,100   -   - 

Additions to 90 day past due assets        35,685   14,231   -   - 

Reduction in 90 day past due assets        (14,533)  (79)  -   - 

Balance at the end of the year        36,404   15,252   -   - 

          

Impaired Assets          

Balance at the beginning of the year        1,691   1,795   -   - 

Additions to individually impaired assets        22,110   (104)  -   - 

Amounts written off        (697)  -   -   - 

Transfer to productive ledger        -   -   -   - 

Balance at the end of the year        23,104   1,691   -   - 

          

Provision for credit impairment        (3,627)  (1,329)  -   - 

Net carrying amount of impaired assets        19,477   362   -   - 

          

There were no restructured loans at balance date (2008: Nil)        

    

The status of the receivables at the reporting date is as follows: 

Not past due        522,691   -   486,704   - 

Past due 0 - 90 days        972   3,499   6,121   282 

Past due 91 - 365 days        12,124   11,875   13,817   71 

Past due more than 1 year        4,675   7,730   26   1,338 

Impairment        -   (3,627)  -   (1,329)

            540,462   19,477   506,668   362 

AS AT 30 JUN 2009

$000

IMPAIRED

AS AT 30 JUN 2009

$000

NOT IMPAIRED

AS AT 30 JUN 2008

$000

NOT IMPAIRED

AS AT 30 JUN 2008

$000

IMPAIRED

20   ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Discontinued Operations          
The discontinued operations referred to in note (13) do not hold any significant assets as at 30 June 2009.
On 1 July 2008, PGG Wrightson Limited sold it’s wool operations to a newly setup company Wool Partners International Limited.   
The 2008 assets and liabilities held for sale represent the items sold as part of that transaction.     
As at 30 June 2009 the disposal group comprised assets of $Nil (2008: $38.158 million) less liabilities of $Nil (2008: $20.900 million).  
              
Properties          
The Group has a perpetual 20 year lease on 5.2ha of land in Napier. The Company also owns buildings on this property. This property is on the 
market and is held for sale.          
The Group has entered into an unconditional contract to sell and lease back 46-54 Wynen Street, Blenheim.  The contract settles on 1 July 2009. 
The Group is marketing the Ceres Farm property.  This consists of 20.5ha in two lots on the corner of Shands and Marshes Road, Christchurch.
The Group owns buildings constructed on leasehold land at 149 Vogel Street, Dunedin.  The Group is marketing this property for sale with the 
intention to lease it back from the purchaser.          
An impairment loss of $3.200 million (2008: $Nil) on the re-measurement of the disposal group to the lower of its carrying amount and its fair value 
less costs to sell has been recognised in Fair Value Adjustments.        
  

GROUP

2009

$000

GROUP

2008

$000

2009

$000

2008

$000

Assets classified as held for sale    

Property, plant and equipment       8,017   9,608   8,017   7,200 

Intangibles         -   83   -   - 

Inventories         -   11,358   -   - 

Trade and other receivables         -   16,859   -   - 

Goodwill        -   250   -   - 

           8,017   38,158   8,017   7,200 

Liabilities classified as held for sale

Income tax        -   565   -   - 

Bank debt        -   16,123   -   - 

Trade and other payables        -   4,212   -   - 

            -   20,900   -   - 

19   FINANCE RECEIVABLES  (CONTINUED) 

 PGG WRIGHTSON LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009             55  54         PGG WRIGHTSON LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PGG WRIGHTSON LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PGG WRIGHTSON LIMITED

23   DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following: 

Group

Property, plant and equipment      -   -   (6,964)  (4,951)  (6,964)  (4,951)

Intangible assets      -   377   (169)  -   (169)  377 

Derivatives      -   226   -   -   -   226 

Provisions      12,293   8,100   -   -   12,293   8,100 

Other items      -   118   (1,358)  (168)  (1,358)  (50)

Tax (asset)/liabilities      12,293   8,821   (8,491)  (5,119)  3,802   3,702  

   

LIABILITIES

2009

$000

ASSETS

2009

$000

LIABILITIES

2008

$000

ASSETS

2008

$000

NET

2009

$000

Merchandise/finished goods        202,655   172,762   56,691   65,185 

Raw materials and work in progress        1,111   2,831   1,111   2,831 

Inventories stated at net realisable value        203,766   175,593   57,802   68,016 

GROUP

2009

$000

GROUP

2008

$000

2009

$000

2008

$000

NET

2008

$000

LIABILITIES

2009

$000

ASSETS

2009

$000

LIABILITIES

2008

$000

ASSETS

2008

$000

NET

2009

$000

Company          

Property, plant and equipment      -   -   (6,516)  (4,697)  (6,516)  (4,697)

Intangible assets      -   294   (169)  -   (169)  294 

Derivatives      -   345   -   -   -   345 

Provisions      9,114   4,676   -   -   9,114   4,676 

Other items      -   7   (1,358)  -   (1,358)  7 

Tax (asset)/liabilities      9,114   5,322   (8,043)  (4,697)  1,071   625  

           

Change in tax rate          

During the previous financial year the corporate tax rate in New Zealand was changed from 33% to 30% with effect for the Company from  

1 July 2008.  Deferred tax is recognised at the rates of tax that are expected to be in effect when the items giving rise to deferred tax crystallise. 

    

Unrecognised tax losses / Unrecognised temporary differences     

The Company does not have any unrecognised tax losses or unrecognised temporary differences. 

NET

2008

$000

GROUP

2009

$000

GROUP

2008

$000

2009

$000

2008

$000

21   BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

Livestock  

Opening balance        5,321   2,772   5,321   2,772 

Increase due to acquisitions        10,466   12,804   10,466   12,804 

Decrease due to sales        (11,432)  (10,316)  (11,432)  (10,316)

Net decrease due to births or deaths        (57)  60   (57)  60 

Changes in fair value        (437)  1   (437)  1 

Closing balance        3,861   5,321   3,861   5,321 

Current         3,630   5,078   3,630   5,078 

Non-current breeding stock        231   243   231   243 

            3,861   5,321   3,861   5,321  

    

As at 30 June 2009, livestock held for sale comprised 1,695 cattle and 28,600 sheep (2008: 4,746 cattle and 7,145 sheep).  
During the year the Group sold 7,245 cattle and 34,789 sheep (2008: 10,314 cattle and 12,397 sheep).
There are no significant financial risks involved in holding livestock in the current market.     
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Acquisition of Subsidiaries    
During the year ending 30 June 2009, the Group made the following acquisitions:   
       
 -  On 31 October 2008, the Group purchased 100% of the shares in Stephens Pasture Seeds Pty Limited.  Stephens Pasture Seeds Pty 

Limited trades in the states of Victoria and South Australia in Australia.  It’s operations cover seed distribution, sales, marketing, seed 
cleaning, mixing and coating.  In the year to 30 June 2009 Stephens Pasture Seeds Pty Limited contributed a profit of $0.408 million.  
    

 -  On 1 July 2008, the Group purchased 51% of the shares in Romualdo Rodriguez Limited.  Romualdo Rodriguez Limited is located in 
Uruguay.  It’s operations cover livestock, wool and real estate including procurement for meat processing companies and internet based 
livestock auctions.  In the year to 30 June 2009 Romualdo Rodriguez Limited contributed a profit of $0.453 million.   

 -  On 30 July 2008, the Group announced the purchase of 51% of the shares in Veterinaria Lasplaces, a leading animal health and rural  
      supplies business in Uruguay.  In the year to 30 June 2009 Veterinaria Lasplaces contributed a profit of $0.808 million.   
      
If these acquisitions had occurred on 1 July 2008, the estimated Group revenue would have been $2.648 million higher and profit would 
have been $0.072 million higher for the year ended 30 June 2009.    
     
During the year ended 30 June 2009, the Company made other minor acquisitions of both subsidiaries and assets.   
No restructuring provisions or other expenses such as the disposal of an operation will be required.  The significant acquisitions had the 
following effect on the assets and liabilities of the Group at the acquisition dates:   
      
 

GROUP

$000 $000

Current assets         

Cash balances         (163)  - 

Trade debtors and accruals         1,124   - 

Inventory        1,527   - 

           2,488   - 

Non - current assets         

Intangible assets        546   - 

Property plant and equipment         411   - 

            957   - 

Current liabilities         

Trade creditors and accruals        1,654   - 

           1,654   - 

Non - current liabilities         

Advances        283   - 

           283   - 

Net assets acquired        1,508   - 

Goodwill arising on acquisition        5,741   - 

Cash paid         7,249   - 

24   GROUP ENTITIES (CONTINUED)

Agriculture New Zealand Limited     New Zealand    PGG Wrightson Limited    100% 100%

Agri-Feeds Limited     New Zealand    PGG Wrightson Limited    100% 100%

Canterbury Sale Yards (1996) Limited     New Zealand    PGG Wrightson Limited    100% 100%

PGG Wrightson Consortia Research Limited     New Zealand    PGG Wrightson Limited    100% 100%

PGG Wrightson Employee Benefits Plan Trustee Limited  New Zealand    PGG Wrightson Limited    100% 100%

PGG Wrightson Finance Limited     New Zealand    PGG Wrightson Limited    100% 100%

PGG Wrightson Investments Limited     New Zealand    PGG Wrightson Limited    100% 100%

PGG Wrightson Seeds Limited     New Zealand    PGG Wrightson Limited    100% 100%

PGG Wrightson Trustee Limited     New Zealand    PGG Wrightson Limited    100% 100%

PGW Corporate Trustee Limited     New Zealand    PGG Wrightson Limited    100% -

PGG Wrightson Funds Management Limited     New Zealand    PGG Wrightson Investments Limited  100% 100%

Agricom Limited     New Zealand    PGG Wrightson Seeds Limited    100% 100%

PGG Wrightson Genomics Limited     New Zealand    PGG Wrightson Seeds Limited    100% 100%

Wrightson Seeds Limited     New Zealand    PGG Wrightson Seeds Limited    100% 100%

New Zealand Wool Handlers Limited     New Zealand    Sold to WPI    - 100%

PGG Wrightson Property Holdings Limited     New Zealand    Amalgamated    - 100%

PGG Seeds Australia Pty Limited     Australia    PGG Wrightson Limited    100% 100%

PGG Wrightson Real Estate Australia Pty Limited  Australia    PGG Wrightson Limited    100% 100%

PGG Wrightson Seeds (Australia) Pty Limited     Australia    PGG Wrightson Limited    100% 100%

Stephen Pasture Seeds Pty Limited     Australia    AusWest Seeds Pty Limited    100% -

AusWest Seeds Pty Limited     Australia    PGG Wrightson Seeds (Australia) Pty Limited  100% 100%

PGG Wrightson Uruguay Limited     Uruguay    PGG Wrightson Investments Limited  100% 100%

Wrightson Pas S.A. Limited     Uruguay    PGG Wrightson Investments Limited  100% 100%

Hunker S.A. (t/a Rural Centre)     Uruguay    PGG Wrightson Uruguay Limited    100% 100%

Lanelle S.A. (t/a Riegoriental)     Uruguay    PGG Wrightson Uruguay Limited    70% -

Afinlux S.A. (t/a Romualdo Rodriguez)     Uruguay    PGG Wrightson Uruguay Limited    51% -

Idogal S.A. (t/a Veterinaria Lasplaces)     Uruguay    PGG Wrightson Uruguay Limited    51% -

Agar Cross S.A. (t/a Agrosan)     Uruguay    Wrightson Pas S.A. Limited    100% 100%

Alfalfares S.R.L.     Argentina    Wrightson Pas S.A. Limited    51% 51%

NZ Ruralco Participacoes Ltda     Brazil    PGG Wrightson Uruguay Limited    100% - 

        
On 7 April 2009 a number of non-trading subsidiaries were amalgamated with the Company.  This amalgamation has not had any impact on 
either the trading or financial position of the Group.        
               

20082009

OWNERSHIP INTEREST

DIRECT 
PARENT

 
INCORPORATION

SIGNIFICANT
SUBSIDIARIES

CONTINUED OVER PAGE...
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2009

$000

2008

$000

Present value of unfunded obligations          -   - 

Present value of funded obligations          (61,863)  (68,705)

Total present value of obligations          (61,863)  (68,705)

Fair value of plan assets          48,183   69,528 

Total defined benefit asset / (liability)          (13,680)  823 

The Group makes contributions to two defined benefit plans that provide a range of superannuation and insurance benefits for employees 
and former employees.  The plan’s retired employees who are entitled to receive an annual pension payment payable on their life and in 
some cases on the life of a surviving spouse. 

2009 2008Actuarial Assumptions:      

Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):  

Discount rate used          5.96% 6.35%

Expected return on plan assets    6.00% 6.00%

Future salary increases    3.50% 3.50%

Future pension increases    2.50% 2.50%

Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on published statistics and mortality tables.  The average life expectancy of an individual 
retiring at age 65 is 19 for males and 22 for females.  The overall expected long-term rate of return on assets is 6 percent.  The expected 
long-term return is based on the portfolio as a whole and not on the sum of the returns on individual asset categories.  The return is based 
on expected future returns of the different asset classes and the investment policies for the plans.   
       

The Group expects to pay $2.500 million (2008: $Nil) in contributions to defined benefit plans in 2010.  Member contributions are expected 
to be $1.114 million (2008: $1.192 million).         
 

2009

$000

2008

$000 $000

2006

$000

Historical information

Present value of the defined benefit obligation        61,863   68,705   71,709   66,208 

Fair value of plan assets        (48,183)  (69,528)  (74,662)  (67,394)

Deficit (surplus) in the plan        13,680   (823)  (2,953)  (1,186)

CONTINUED...

2009 2008 2009 2008

Plan assets consist of:       

NZ equities       64% 69% 64% 69%

Fixed interest       32% 23% 32% 23%

Cash        4% 8% 4% 8%

           100% 100% 100% 100%

PGG WRIGHTSON 

BENEFITS PLAN

PGG WRIGHTSON 

BENEFITS PLAN

WRIGHTSONS  

RETIREMENT PLAN

WRIGHTSONS  

RETIREMENT PLAN

2009

$000

2008

$000

Movement in the liability for defined benefit obligations:    

Liability for defined benefit obligations at 1 July          68,705   71,709 

Benefits paid by the plan          (11,111)  (12,265)

Current service costs and interest          3,363   3,936 

Member contributions          1,556   1,664 

Actuarial (gains)/losses recognised in equity          (650)  3,661 

Liability for defined benefit obligations at 30 June          61,863   68,705  

         

Movement in plan assets:          

Fair value of plan assets at 1 July          69,528   74,662 

Contributions paid into the plan          1,709   1,721 

Benefits paid by the plan          (11,111)  (12,265)

Expected return on plan assets          3,864   4,238 

Actuarial gains/(losses) recognised in equity          (15,807)  1,172 

Fair value of plan assets at 30 June          48,183   69,528  

         

Expense recognised in profit or loss:          

Current service costs          714   996 

Interest on obligation          2,649   2,940 

Expected return on plan assets          (3,864)  (4,238)

Recognised in Non-Trading Items        9  (501)  (302)

Actual return on plan assets          (12,043)  7,431  

         

Actuarial gains and losses recognised directly in equity:       

Cumulative (gains)/losses at 1 July          823   2,953 

Net profit and loss impact from current period costs          501   302 

Recognised during the year          (15,740)  (2,432)

Cumulative (gains)/losses at 30 June          (14,416)  823 

NOTE

Movement in carrying value of equity accounted investees 

Opening balance        3,141   22,266   2,651   2,459 

New investments        10,100   -   10,100   - 

Gain on sale write down        (10,000) -  (10,000) -

Capitalisation of loan        378   -   378   - 

Reclassification of investments in associates        1,615   (19,475)  1,806   - 

Share of profit/(loss)        (1,380)  831   (1,199)  673 

Dividends received        (586)  (481)  (586)  (481)

Closing balance        3,268   3,141   3,150   2,651  

           

There is no goodwill included in the carrying value of equity accounted investees (2008: Nil).    

      

GROUP

2009

$000

GROUP

2008

$000

2009

$000

2008

$000

 (CONTINUED)  
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Non-current investments          

Other investments        36,262   69,088   8,551   5,518 

Advances to associates        33,925   438   27,878   754 

            70,187   69,526   36,429   6,272 

Other investments          
The majority of the other investments balance is made up as follows, with the balance being smaller, immaterial investments in other companies. 
               
   

GROUP

2009

$000

GROUP

2008

$000

2009

$000

2008

$000

PGG Wrightson’s investment in NZ Farming Systems Uruguay Limited (NZFSU) is held at fair value through the profit and loss in accordance 
with NZIAS39 and recorded a loss of $39.214 million in the Income Statement (2008: Gain $18.888m).  A further capital investment of 
$1.155 million (2008: $0.678 million) was made during the year.     
     
NZFSU has a management contract with PGG Wrightson Funds Management Limited (a subsidiary of PGG Wrightson Investments Limited).  
Included within this is a performance fee element where a fee is payable to PGG Wrightson Funds Management Limited where shareholder 
returns exceed a compounding 10% per annum.  The share price used for this calculation is the weighted average share price for April to 
June 2009.  In line with NZ IFRS PGG Wrightson Funds Management Limited has earned a pre tax performance fee of $Nil (2008: $17.8 
million) in the year based on a share price required of $1.78 (2008: $1.62).    
      
BioPacificVentures Limited and other saleyards investments are carried at cost.    
      
Advances to associates includes a loan from the Company of $17.5 million, in the form of redeemable preference shares in Wool Partners 
International Limited.  An advance of $10 million is held with Wool Grower Holdings Limited, with the balance being smaller loans to various 
entities in South America.          

GROUP 

2009

$000

GROUP

2008

$000

New Zealand Farming Systems Uruguay Limited          12,892   50,951 

BioPacificVentures Limited       37  11,351   7,780 

Sundry other investments including saleyards         12,019   10,357 

             36,262   69,088 

NOTE

28   INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost           

Balance at 1 July 2007    9,142   500   315,141   324,783   5,303   -   309,109   314,412 

Additions    1,197   -   19,141   20,338   1,196   -   2,872   4,068 

Transfer to assets held for sale    (250)  -   -   (250)  -   -   -   - 

Effect of movement in exchange rates    -   -   (249)  (249)  -   -   (4,735)  (4,735)

Balance at 30 June 2008    10,089   500   334,033   344,622   6,499   -   307,246   313,745 

Balance at 1 July 2008    10,089   500   334,033   344,622   6,499   -   307,246   313,745 

Additions    14,737  -  13,879   28,616   12,991   -   -   12,991 

Disposals     (355) -  (7,081)  (7,436)  -   -   -   - 

Write off on closure of Australian subsidiary    -  -  (227)  (227)  -   -   -   - 

Effect of movement in exchange rates    -  -  (160)  (160)  -   -   -   - 

Balance at 30 June 2009    24,471   500   340,444   365,415   19,490   -   307,246   326,736 

Amortisation and impairment losses          

Balance at 1 July 2007    7,651   75   17,080   24,806   4,297   -   16,498   20,795 

Amortisation for the year    377   -   -   377   130   -   -   130 

Transfer to assets held for sale    (167)  -   -   (167)  -   -   -   - 

Balance at 30 June 2008    7,861   75   17,080   25,016   4,427   -   16,498   20,925 

Balance at 1 July 2008    7,861   75   17,080   25,016   4,427   -   16,498   20,925 

Amortisation for the year    319   -   -   319   115   -   -   115 

Additions    302   -   -   302   -   -   -   - 

Disposals     (355)  -   -   (355)  -   -   -   - 

Balance at 30 June 2009    8,127   75   17,080   25,282   4,542   -   16,498   21,040 

Carrying amounts          

At 1 July 2007    1,491   425   298,061   299,977   1,006   -   292,611   293,617 

At 30 June 2008    2,228   425   316,953   319,606   2,072   -   290,748   292,820 

At 1 July 2008    2,228   425   316,953   319,606   2,072   -   290,748   292,820 

At 30 June 2009    16,344   425   323,364   340,133   14,948   -   290,748   305,696 

GROUP

TRADEMARKS  

& PATENTS

$000

TRADEMARKS  

& PATENTS

$000

GROUP

SOFTWARE

$000

SOFTWARE

$000

GROUP

TOTAL

$000

TOTAL

$000

GROUP

GOODWILL

$000

GOODWILL

$000

Impairment testing for cash-generating units containing goodwill   
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the Group’s operating divisions which represent the lowest level within the Group at 
which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.  

The impairment tests for all cash-generating units were based on the value in use.  The value in use was determined by discounting the future cash 
flows generated from the continuing use of the unit.  Cash flows were projected based on actual operating results, the 2010 budget, 2011 and 2012 
forecasted results, and forecast results for a further two years assuming a 5% growth rate.  A discount rate of 13% was applied.

The carrying amounts of the units were determined to be lower than their recoverable amount and no impairment loss was recognised (2008: Nil).

The renewable trademarks and patent have been separated out from goodwill.  They have been assessed on the same basis as goodwill and no 
impairment loss was recognised (2008: Nil).          

The aggregate carrying amounts of goodwill allocated  

to each unit are as follows:     

Customer Services        290,748   297,827   290,748   290,748 

Seed, Grain and Nutrition        22,800   17,823   -   - 

Financial Services        9,816   1,303   -   - 

            323,364   316,953   290,748   290,748 

GROUP

2009

$000

GROUP

2008

$000

2009

$000

2008

$000
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Group 

Cost           

Balance at 1 July 2007      14,301  18,368   70,539   9,811   113,019 

Additions       1,135  5,991   13,168   1,915   22,209 

Disposals and transfers to other asset classes       (302)  (3,550)  (3,701)  (1,617)  (9,170)

Transfer to assets held for sale       (120)  (874)  (992)  (422)  (2,408)

Effect of movements in exchange rates       -   5   340   -   345 

Balance at 30 June 2008       15,014   19,940   79,354   9,687   123,995 

          

Balance at 1 July 2008      15,014   19,940   79,354   9,687   123,995 

Additions       155  60   10,666   2,215   13,096 

Disposals and transfers to other asset classes       -   (48)  (2,026)  (6,727)  (8,801)

Transfer to assets held for sale       (110)  (749)  -   -   (859)

Effect of movements in exchange rates       -   (36)  (192)  -   (228)

Balance at 30 June 2009       15,059   19,167   87,802   5,175   127,203 

          

Depreciation and impairment losses          

Balance at 1 July 2007       -   4,291   43,492   -   47,783 

Depreciation for the year       -   681   5,127   -   5,808 

Additions       -   393   2,624   -   3,017 

Disposals and transfers to other asset classes       -   (624)  (1,689)  -   (2,313)

Transfer to assets held for sale       -   (110)  (601)  -   (711)

Effect of movements in exchange rates       -   -   190    190 

Balance at 30 June 2008       -   4,631   49,143   -   53,774 

          

Balance at 1 July 2008       -   4,631   49,143   -   53,774 

Depreciation for the year       -   456   5,650   -   6,106 

Additions       -   -   1,200   -   1,200 

Disposals and transfers to other asset classes       -   (11)  (838)  -   (849)

Transfer to assets held for sale       -   24   -   -   24 

Effect of movements in exchange rates       -   (12)  (94)  -   (106)

Balance at 30 June 2009       -   5,088   55,061   -   60,149 

          

Carrying amounts          

At 1 July 2007       14,301   14,077   27,047   9,811   65,236 

At 30 June 2008       15,014   15,309   30,211   9,687   70,221 

          

At 1 July 2008       15,014   15,309   30,211   9,687   70,221 

At 30 June 2009       15,059   14,079   32,741   5,175   67,054 

BUILDINGS

$000

LAND

$000

PLANT 

AND 

$000

CAPITAL 

WORKS 

PROJECT

$000

TOTAL

$000

CONTINUED...

Company          

Cost           

Balance at 1 July 2007      13,729   13,812   46,128   8,359   82,028 

Additions       964   2,613   3,786   1,048   8,411 

Disposals and transfers to other asset classes       (152)  (123)  (137)  -   (412)

Balance at 30 June 2008      14,541   16,302   49,777   9,407   90,027 

          

Balance at 1 July 2008      14,541   16,302   49,777   9,407   90,027 

Additions       -   56   6,497   1,519   8,072 

Disposals and transfers to other asset classes       -   (3)  (162)  (6,481)  (6,646)

Transfer to assets held for sale       (110)  (749)  -   -   (859)

Balance at 30 June 2009      14,431   15,606   56,112   4,445   90,594 

          

Depreciation and impairment losses          

Balance at 1 July 2007       -   3,363   29,971   -   33,334 

Depreciation for the year       -   542   3,246   -   3,788 

Disposals and transfers to other asset classes       -   (2)  (78)  -   (80)

Balance at 30 June 2008       -   3,903   33,139   -   37,042 

          

Balance at 1 July 2008       -   3,903   33,139   -   37,042 

Depreciation for the year       -   372   3,602   -   3,974 

Disposals and transfers to other asset classes       -   -   34   -   34 

Transfer to assets held for sale       -   24   -   -   24 

Balance at 30 June 2009       -   4,299   36,775   -   41,074 

          

Carrying amounts          

At 1 July 2007       13,729   10,449   16,157   8,359   48,694 

At 30 June 2008       14,541   12,399   16,638   9,407   52,985 

          

At 1 July 2008       14,541   12,399   16,638   9,407   52,985 

At 30 June 2009       14,431   11,307   19,337   4,445   49,520 

BUILDINGS

$000

LAND

$000

PLANT AND 

$000

CAPITAL WORKS 

PROJECT

$000

TOTAL

$000

Property, plant and equipment under construction          
During the year ended 30 June 2009, the Group completed property projects to buildings in Whangarei, Auckland, Mt Maunganui, Katikati, 
Fielding (saleyards upgrade stage 1), Levin, Richmond and Rakaia.  Property projects have been committed for the following year in Waipapa, 
Hawera, Fielding (saleyards stage 2).          
          

(CONTINUED)
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Trade creditors        97,453   127,532   41,894   65,196 

Payable to Directors - retirement allowances        40   40   40   40 

Accruals and other liabilities (including loyalty reward programme)  63,750   39,026   27,855   15,250 

Employee entitlements         10,729   9,460   7,873   7,190 

Amounts owing to subsidiaries        -   -   287   16,919 

            171,972   176,058   77,949   104,595 

Payable within 12 months        171,179   176,058   77,949   104,595 

Payable beyond 12 months        793   -   -   - 

            171,972   176,058   77,949   104,595  

       

GROUP

2009

$000

GROUP

2008

$000

2009

$000

2008

$000

Balance as at 1 July        1,910   1,669   1,910   1,669 

Additional provision made        1,218   1,166   1,218   1,166 

Amount utilised        (1,209)  (925)  (1,209)  (925)

Balance as at 30 June        1,919   1,910   1,919   1,910 

GROUP

2009

$000

GROUP

2008

$000

2009

$000

2008

$000

Payables denominated in currencies other than the functional currency comprise $90,817,000 (2008: $29,520,000) of trade payables 
denominated in USD $47,145,000 (2008: $26,903,000), AUD $41,049,000 (2008: $2,617,000), EUR $2,487,000 (2008: $Nil) and  
GBP $136,000 (2008: $Nil).
          
    
      
Loyalty reward programme          
The PGG Wrightson Loyalty Reward Programme is run in conjunction with the co-branded American Express card. A provision is retained for 
the expected level of points redemption.          

31   LOAN AND BORROWINGS          

This note provides information about the contractual terms of the Group’s interest-bearing loans and borrowings.  For more information about 
the Company’s exposure to interest rate and foreign currency risk, see Financial Instruments note 35. 

All bond series are senior secured in terms of the PGG Wrightson Finance Trust Deed Relating to Bonds (including amendments) dated  
21 April 2005.  They rank equally with debenture stock and bank loans with a 5% limitation on prior security.  Interest is paid quarterly.   
The carrying value includes the capitalised bond costs with are amortised over the life of the bonds.    
      
Debentures consist of fixed interest debt securities which are of equal ranking with bonds, debentures and bank loans.  They are secured  
by a first ranking security interest over all the assets of PGG Wrightson Finance Limited in terms of a Trust Deed dated 7 October 2004.   
The interest rate for the secured debenture stock is fixed for the term of the investment at the time of application and is paid either monthly, 
quarterly or annually.  Funding is sourced from within New Zealand.      
          
All deposits listed are unsecured deposits and rank equally with unsecured creditors of PGG Wrightson Finance Limited.  The deposits are 
issued pursuant to the Trust Deed dated 7 October 2004.  The interest rate for the deposits is fixed for the term of the investment at the time 
of application and is paid monthly or as otherwise specified.  Funding is sourced from within New Zealand.   
          
PGG Wrightson Finance Limited has a guarantee under the New Zealand deposit guarantee scheme.  For further information about the  
New Zealand deposit guarantee scheme, refer to www.treasury.govt.nz.     
     

Non-current liabilities          

Secured bond issues      100,000   98,488   24,751   -   -   - 

Secured debenture stock       79,236   17,309      -   - 

          100,000   177,724   42,060   -   -   - 

Current liabilities          

Secured bond issues      25,216   25,076   20,000  -    -   - 

Secured debenture stock       141,814   155,618      -   - 

Client unsecured deposit and 

   current accounts      83,032   94,258      -   2,454 

          25,216   249,922   269,876   -   -   2,454 

          125,216   427,646   311,936   -   -   2,454 

2008

$000

AMORTISED COST

2009

$000

AMORTISED COST
$000

FACE VALUE

GROUP 

2008

$000

AMORTISED COST

GROUP 

2009

$000

AMORTISED COST

GROUP 

$000

FACE VALUE
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Reconciliation of  

movements in equity      

Group  

Balance at 1 July 2007      359,445   (43)  24,931   3,720   38,150   426,203 

Total recognised income and expense      -   -   551   (2,432)  73,430   71,549 

Transfer to realised capital reserve      -   -   2,428   -   (2,428)  - 

Issue ordinary shares      15,063   -   -   -   -   15,063 

Foreign currency translation differences      -   4,592   -   -   -   4,592 

Dividends to shareholders      -   -   -   -   (36,906)  (36,906)

Balance at 30 June 2008      374,508   4,549   27,910   1,288   72,246   480,501 

          

Balance at 1 July 2008      374,508   4,549   27,910   1,288   72,246   480,501 

Total recognised income and expense      -   -   (405)  (10,900)  (61,297)  (72,602)

Issue ordinary shares      34,342   -   -   -   -   34,342 

Foreign currency translation differences       (3,369)  297   -   (1,799)  (4,871)

Dividends to shareholders      -   -   -   -   (46,449)  (46,449)

Balance at 30 June 2009      408,850   1,180   27,802   (9,612)  (37,299)  390,921 

          

Company          

Balance at 1 July 2007      359,445   -   24,931   3,720   (4,079)  384,017 

Total recognised income and expense      -   -   -   (2,432)  75,246   72,814 

Issue ordinary shares      15,063   -   -   -   -   15,063 

Foreign currency translation differences      -   638   -   -   -   638 

Dividends to shareholders      -   -   -   -   (36,906)  (36,906)

Balance at 30 June 2008      374,508   638   24,931   1,288   34,261   435,626 

          

Balance at 1 July 2008      374,508   638   24,931   1,288   34,261   435,626 

Total recognised income and expense      -   -   (389)  (10,900)  (19,931)  (31,220)

Foreign currency translation differences      -   (638)  -   -   72   (566)

Issue ordinary shares      34,342   -   -   -   -   34,342 

Dividends to shareholders      -   -   -   -   (46,449)  (46,449)

Balance at 30 June 2009      408,850   -   24,542   (9,612)  (32,047)  391,733 

$000

RETAINED  

EARNINGS

$000

DEFINED BENEFIT 

PLAN RESERVE

$000

REALISED  

CAPITAL RESERVE

$000

TRANSLATION  

RESERVE

$000

SHARE CAPITAL

$000

32   CAPITAL AND RESERVES 32   CAPITAL AND RESERVES  (CONTINUED)

CONTINUED...

Share Capital

On issue at 1 July        374,508   359,445   289,324   281,304 

Bonus issues        22,342   15,063   16,492   8,020 

Issued to Silver Fern Farms        12,000   -   10,000   - 

On issue at 30 June        408,850   374,508   315,816   289,324 

2009

$000

2008

$000

NO. OF SHARES

2009

000

NO. OF SHARES

2008

000

All shares are ordinary fully paid shares, carry equal voting rights and share equally in any profit on the winding up of the Group.  
        
Foreign currency translation reserve        
The translation reserve comprises all foreign currency differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations as 
well as from the translation of liabilities that hedge the Company’s net investment in a foreign subsidiary.    
      
Retained Earnings          
Fair value adjustments are incorporated in the Retained Earnings Reserve unless they specifically relate to the Defined Benefit Plan.  
        
Hedging Reserve          
The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow hedging instruments related to 
hedged transactions that have not yet settled, and is contained within Retained Earnings    
      
Defined Benefit Plan Reserve          
The defined benefit plan reserve contains actuarial gains and losses on plan assets and defined benefit obligations.   
       
Realised capital reserve          
The realised capital reserve comprises the cumulative net capital gains that have been realised.    
            
Dividends
The following dividends were declared and paid by the Group for the year ended 30 June:   

2009

$000

2008

$000

$0.16 per qualifying ordinary share (2008: 0.12)         46,449   36,906 
             46,449   36,906 
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33   RECONCILIATION OF PROFIT AFTER TAX WITH NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES   

       

Profit after taxation        (66,444)  73,206   (20,323)  75,585           

Add/(deduct) non-cash / non operating items:          

  Depreciation, amortisation and impairment         6,590   6,183   4,089   3,786 

  Fair value adjustments         50,421   (14,543)  10,544   4,590 

  Net (profit) on sale of assets/shares         (17,564)  (7,188)  (17,422)  (1,687)

  Bad debts written off (net)         2,206   784   1,945   382 

  Increase/(decrease) in provision for doubtful debts         2,231   (369)  (667)  (788)

  (Increase)/decrease in deferred taxation         (101)  2,012   (446)  1,215 

  NZFSU performance fee accrued         -   (17,782)  -   - 

  Equity accounted (earnings) from associates         1,380   (831)  1,199   (673)

  Management fee from subsidiaries         -   -   (41,000)  (71,000)

  Financing costs         14,350   -   (14,350)  - 

  Silver Fern due diligence and settlement costs         49,600   -   49,600   - 

  Other non-cash items         6,339   705   13,649   827 

            115,452   (31,029)  7,141   (63,348)
Add/(deduct) movement in working capital items:          

  Movement in working capital due to sale/purchase of businesses    (8,119)  41,890   981   18,091 

  (Increase)/decrease in inventories and biological assets        (22,744)  (33,080)  15,597   626 

  (Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable and prepayments     25,483   (39,955)  40,772   (26,986)

  (Increase)/decrease in assets held for sale         9,241   (10,058)  (817)  (7,200)

  Increase/(decrease) in trade creditors, provisions and accruals    (7,965)  23,294   (12,687)  (25,614)

  Increase/(decrease) in income tax payable/receivable         7,030   2,025   18,472   (3,276)

            2,926   (15,884)  62,318   (44,359)

Net cash flow from operating activities        51,934   26,293   49,136   (32,122)

GROUP

2009

$000

GROUP

2008

$000

2009

$000

2008

$000

         

 
PGG Wrightson Limited Employee Share Purchase Scheme was established by PGG Wrightson Limited in 2006 to assist employees to become 
shareholders in the Company.  Every current New Zealand based permanent full-time employee and every permanent part-time employee who 
is normally employed or deemed to be employed for not less than twenty working hours in each week is eligible to participate in the scheme.  
        
Fully paid ordinary shares in PGG Wrightson Limited are offered, from time to time, for purchase by each eligible employee.  There are 
two options for paying for the shares, either an interest free loan or cash payment.  The interest free loan is for a term of three years and 
repayments are automatically deducted from employees salaries and wages.     
        
There is a three year restrictive period applicable to shares purchased.  This period commences on the date on which shares are purchased by 
the employees.  During the restrictive period, the shares bought by the employees are registered in the name of the Trustee of the scheme and 
held by them on the employees behalf.  At the end of the restrictive period, once any loan from the Trustee has been repaid in full, the shares 
are transferred to the employees.  Employees are eligible for any dividends paid, or other distributions made by the Group to the holders of 
its ordinary shares during the restrictive period.  Any voting rights attached to shares held by the Trustee shall, unless the Group otherwise 
determines, be exercised by the Trustee in such manner as they, in their absolute discretion, think fit.    
        
The Trustee shall from time to time at the direction of the Group acquire shares by subscription, purchase or otherwise which are to be held by 
the Trustee for the purposes of the scheme and/or for the benefit of eligible employees. For shares issued to the Trustee, the issue price is based 
on the market price of the shares quoted on the New Zealand Stock Exchange at the date of issue.    
      
          
Shares held by the Scheme          
The plan held the following ordinary shares at the end of the year:      

Ordinary shares       
 Allocated to employees (fully paid)          436   760 
 Not yet allocated to employees          166   52 
 Percentage of total ordinary shares         0.19% 0.28%
          

All shares held by the Scheme that are fully paid carry full voting rights.  The Scheme acquired Nil shares during the year (2008: 166,795 at an 
average price of $2.04 per share).          
          
Control of the Scheme           
Non-beneficial control of the shares in the scheme not yet allocated to employees is vested in a Corporate Trustee, PGW Corporate Trustee 
Limited. The directors of which at balance date were Tim Miles, Managing Director, and Mike Sang, Chief Financial Officer. If the shares have 
voting rights, the Corporate Trustee is entitled to exercise that voting power.
   
          
Financial Commitments          
Advances from PGG Wrightson Limited         260   345 
    
      
Advances from PGG Wrightson Limited are interest free and are repayable on demand.  There are no advances to the Trust from external 
sources.  At balance date no shares (2008: Nil) had been pledged to external financial institutions as security.

2009

$000

2008

$000
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35   FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS          

The Group is committed to the management of risk to achieve sustainability of service, employment and profits, and therefore, takes on 
controlled amounts of risk when considered appropriate.      
    
The primary risks are those of credit, liquidity, foreign exchange and market (funding, price and interest rate) risk.   
       
The Board of Directors is responsible for the review and ratification of the Group’s systems of risk management, internal compliance and 
control, code of conduct and legal compliance.       
   
The Board maintains a formal set of delegated authorities (including policies for credit and treasury), that clearly define the responsibilities 
delegated to management and those retained by the Board.  The Board approves these delegated authorities and reviews them annually.  
        
Liquidity Risk          
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulties in raising funds at short notice to meet commitments associated with financial 
instruments.  The Group monitors its liquidity daily, weekly and monthly and maintains appropriate liquid assets and committed bank funding 
facilities to meet all obligations in a timely and cost efficient manner.  Management of liquidity risk is designed to ensure that the Company has 
the ability to meet financial obligations as they fall due.      
    
The objectives of the Group’s funding and liquidity policy is to:      
    
- ensure all financial obligations are met when due;      
   
- provide adequate protection, even under crisis scenarios; and      
   
- achieve competitive funding within the limitations of liquidity requirements.     
    
The Group manages this risk by forecasting daily cash requirements, forecasting future funding requirements, maintaining an adequate liquidity 
buffer and ensuring long term lending is reasonably matched with long term funding.     
     
Foreign Exchange Risk          
The Group undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies and exposure to movements in foreign currency arises from these 
activities. It is the Group’s policy to hedge foreign currency risks as they arise. In some circumstances foreign exchange options are used to 
hedge potential foreign exchange risk. The Group uses forward, spot foreign exchange contracts and foreign exchange options to manage 
these exposures.          

The notional contract amounts of forward foreign exchange transactions outstanding at balance date are $86.074 million (2008: $105.900 
million) for the Group and $12.861 million (2008: $34.100 million) for the Company. The cash settlement requirements of these contracts 
approximates the notional contract amount shown above.      
    
The translation of independent foreign operations into the Group financial statements is not hedged, apart from the seasonal working capital 
exposure to PGG Wrightson Seeds Australia which is hedged with foreign exchange contracts.    
      
Market Risk          
Market risk, particularly for subsidiary PGG Wrightson Finance Limited, is the potential for change in the value of balance sheet positions 
caused by a change in the value, volatility or relationship between market risks and prices.  Market risk arises from the mismatch between 
assets and liabilities, both on and off balance sheet.  Market risk includes funding, price and interest rate risk which are explained as follows:  

     - Funding Risk          
Funding risk is the risk of over-reliance on a funding source to the extent that a change in that funding source could increase overall funding 
costs or cause difficulty in raising funds.  The Group has a policy of funding diversification.  The funding policy augments the Group’s liquidity 
policy with it’s aim to ensure the Group has a stable diversified funding base without over-reliance on any one market sector.  
        

CONTINUED... CONTINUED...

INTEREST 

RATES INCREASE 

INTEREST 

RATES INCREASE 

35   FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  (CONTINUED) 

     - Price and Interest Rate Risk          
Price risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments and the interest margin will fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates.  
The risk is that financial assets may be repriced at a different time and / or by a different amount than financial liabilities.   
       
This risk is managed by operating within approved policy limits using an interest rate duration approach.      
      
Floating rate borrowings are used for general funding activities. Interest rate swaps, interest rate options and forward rate agreements are used 
to hedge the floating rate exposure as deemed appropriate. The Group had $807.281 million (Company: $479.500 million) of interest rate 
contracts at balance date (2008: Group $414.240 million, Company $299.750 million).     
     
Credit Risk          
Management formally reports on all aspects of key risks to the Audit Committee at least two times each year.  In addition, the following 
management committees review and manage key risks:      
    
- The Senior Management Team meets regularly to consider new and emerging risks, reviews actions required to manage and mitigate key 

risks, and monitors progress. 
        
- The Credit Committee of subsidiary PGG Wrightson Finance Limited, comprising of Board representation and management appointees, 

meets regularly as required to review credit risk, new loans and provisioning.       
  

Capital Management          
The capital of the Group consists of share capital, reserves, and retained earnings.     
     
The policy of the Group is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence while providing the 
ability to develop future business initiatives. The Board has determined that returning between 60 and 70% of after tax profit to shareholders 
by way of dividend achieves this policy while still providing significant returns. This policy is reviewed regularly by the Board and has not been 
changed during the period.          
          
As a condition of external lines of funding, the Group must maintain a level of capital in excess of 10% of Total Tangible Assets. This 
requirement is monitored on a daily basis by management. At no time during the period was this requirement breached.   
       
Sensitivity Analysis          
The Treasury policy of the Group effectively insulates earnings from the effect of short-term fluctuations in either foreign exchange or interest 
rates. Over the longer term however, permanent changes in foreign exchange or interest rates will have an impact on profit.   
       
The sensitivity of net profit after tax for the period to 30 June 2009, and shareholders equity at that date, to reasonably possible changes in 
conditions is as follows:

Impact on net profit after tax         (1,401) 1,400
Members’ equity         (1,334) 1,339

The stress test uses the existing balance sheet interest rate mismatch against the cumulative mismatch between repricing assets and liabilities 
out from one to five years.  Other market risks such as pricing and foreign exchange are not considered likely to lead to material change over 
the next reporting period.  For this reason sensitivity analysis of these market risks is not included.    
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Company 2009          

Assets          

 Cash and cash equivalents      32,083  -   -   32,083   32,083 

 Derivative financial instruments      4,955   281   -   5,236   5,236 

 Trade and other receivables      369,258   -   -   369,258   369,258 

 Finance receivables      4,470   -   -   4,470   4,470 

          410,766   281   -   411,047   411,047 

Liabilities          

 Bank facilities      453,966   -   -   453,966   453,966 

 Derivative financial instruments      5,687   3,225   1,987   10,899   10,899 

 Trade and other payables      77,949   -   -   77,949   77,949 

 Finance liabilities      -   -   -   -   - 

          537,602   3,225   1,987   542,814   542,814 

Company 2008          

Assets          

 Cash and cash equivalents      14,758  -   -   14,758   14,758 

 Derivative financial instruments      1,759   21   -   1,780   1,780 

 Trade and other receivables      301,199   -   -   301,199   301,199 

 Finance receivables      -   4,440   -   4,440   4,440 

          317,716   4,461   -   322,177   322,177 

Liabilities          

 Bank facilities      194,727   164,000   -   358,727   358,727 

 Derivative financial instruments      1,172   1,365   -   2,537   2,537 

 Trade and other payables      104,595   -   -   104,595   104,595 

 Finance liabilities      2,454   -   -   2,454   2,454 

          302,948   165,365   -   468,313   468,313 

Group 2009

Assets          

 Cash and cash equivalents      45,999  -   -   45,999   45,999 

 Derivative financial instruments      7,275   4,742   795   12,812   12,812 

 Trade and other receivables      214,914   -   -   214,914   214,914 

 Finance receivables      418,599   120,713   59,965   599,277   559,939 

          686,787   125,455   60,760   873,002   833,664 

Liabilities          

 Bank facilities      526,540   -   -   526,540   526,540 

 Derivative financial instruments      6,802   4,380   2,205   13,387   13,387 

 Trade and other payables      171,179   -   -   171,179   171,179 

 Finance liabilities      262,429   158,900   39,827   461,156   427,646 

          966,950   163,280   42,032   1,172,262   1,138,752 

Group 2008          

Assets          

 Cash and cash equivalents      26,101  -   -   26,101   26,101 

 Derivative financial instruments      1,975   63   37   2,075   2,075 

 Trade and other receivables      243,158   -   -   243,158   243,158 

 Finance receivables      308,179   136,049   62,802   507,030   507,030 

          579,413   136,112   62,839   778,364   778,364 

Liabilities          

 Bank facilities      174,294   304,000   -   478,294   478,294 

 Derivative financial instruments      1,660   2,102   34   3,796   3,796 

 Trade and other payables      176,058   -   -   176,058   176,058 

 Finance liabilities      269,875   37,729   4,332   311,936   311,936 

          621,887   343,831   4,366   970,084   970,084 

1 TO 2 

$000

WITHIN  

12 MONTHS

$000

OVER 2 

$000

CONTRACTUAL 

CASH FLOW

$000

BALANCE 

SHEET

$000

QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURES          

Liquidity Risk - Maturity Analysis          

The following tables analyse the Group assets and liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance 
sheet date to the contractual maturity date (reported on an undiscounted basis). Deposits include substantial customer savings deposits and 
cheque accounts, which are at call.         
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2009 2008

Group 2009

Assets          

 Cash and cash equivalents      -   45,999   -   45,999   45,999 

 Derivative financial instruments      12,812   -   -   12,812   12,812 

 Trade and other receivables      -   156,137   -   156,137   156,137 

 Other investments      12,892   33,925   23,370   70,187   70,187 

 Loans and receivables      -   559,939   -   559,939   560,580 

          25,704   796,000   23,370   845,074   845,715 

Liabilities          

 Derivative financial instruments      13,387   -   -   13,387   13,387 

 Trade and other payables      -   -   171,179   171,179   171,179 

 Deposits and other borrowings      -   -   83,032   83,032   83,032 

 Debentures - secured      -   -   221,050   221,050   226,589 

 Bonds       -   -   123,564   123,564   133,409 

 Bank facilities      -   526,540   -   526,540   526,540 

          13,387   526,540   598,825   1,138,752   1,154,136 

Group 2008          

Assets          

 Cash and cash equivalents      -   26,101   -   26,101   26,101 

 Derivative financial instruments      2,075   -   -   2,075   2,075 

 Trade and other receivables      -   210,820   -   210,820   210,820 

 Other investments      50,951   438   18,137   69,526   69,526 

 Finance receivables      -   507,030   -   507,030   448,915 

          53,026   744,389   18,137   815,552   757,437 

Liabilities          

 Derivative financial instruments      3,796   -   -   3,796   3,796 

 Trade and other payables      -   -   176,058   176,058   176,058 

 Deposits and other borrowings      -   -   94,258   94,258   89,201 

 Debentures - secured      -   -   172,927   172,927   160,907 

 Bonds       -   -   44,751   44,751   39,780 

 Bank facilities      -   478,294   -   478,294   478,294 

          3,796   478,294   487,994   970,084   948,036 

LOANS AND 

RECEIVABLES

$000

TRADING AT 

FAIR VALUE

$000

OTHER 

AMORTISED COST

$000

TOTAL CARRYING 

AMOUNT

$000

FAIR 

VALUE

$000

Accounting classifications and fair values      
The tables below set out the Group’s classification of each class of assets and liabilities, and their fair values.   
       
          

Interest rates for determining fair values       

Loans and receivables         8.5% 12.0%

Debentures - secured         5.1% 12.0%

Bonds          6.8% 12.0%

CONTINUED...

Foreign Currency Exposure Risk   
The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk can be summarised as:   

CANADIAN

NZ$000

YEN

NZ$000

GBP

NZ$000

USD

NZ$000

AUD

NZ$000

EURO

NZ$000

Group 2009

Cash and cash equivalents      -   -   -   4,192   665   - 

Trade and other receivables    176   -   -   16,709   12,015   17,266 

Trade and other payables       136   -   -   6,942   37,092   3,092 

Net balance sheet position      312   -   -   27,843   49,772   20,358 

          

Forward exchange contracts         

Notional forward exchange cover 230   -   -   27,758   37,404   20,682 

Net unhedged position       82   -   -   85   12,368   (324)

          

Group 2008          

Cash and cash equivalents      -   -   -   102   (822)  - 

Trade and other receivables    76   66   247   19,651   2,393   17,504 

Trade and other payables       -   -   -   27,234   36,801   2,592 

Net balance sheet position      76   66   247   46,987   38,372   20,096 

          

Forward exchange contracts         

Notional forward exchange cover 76   66   247   46,894   38,376   20,271 

Net unhedged position       -   -   -   93   (4)  (175)

          

Company 2009          

Cash and cash equivalents      -   -   -   4,459   1,307   37 

Trade and other receivables     -   -   -   2,321   -   - 

Trade and other payables       -   -   -   2,956   1,445   273 

Net balance sheet position      -   -   -   9,736   2,752   310 

          

Forward exchange contracts         

Notional forward exchange cover  -   -   -   10,904   1,455   502 

Net unhedged position       -   -   -   (1,168)  1,297   (192)

          

Company 2008          

Cash and cash equivalents      -   -   -   -   -   - 

Trade and other receivables     76   66   -   9,556   1,412   175 

Trade and other payables       -   -   -   22,233   538   133 

Net balance sheet position      76   66   -   31,789   1,950   308 

          

Forward exchange contracts         

Notional forward exchange cover 76   66   -   31,705   1,912   308 

Net unhedged position       -   -   -   84   38   - 

35   FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  (CONTINUED) 35   FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  (CONTINUED) 

CONTINUED...

 PGG WRIGHTSON LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009             77  76         PGG WRIGHTSON LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PGG WRIGHTSON LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PGG WRIGHTSON LIMITED

Interest Rate Repricing Schedule          
The following tables include the Company’s assets and liabilities at their carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing or 
maturity dates.          

Group 2009    

Assets          

 Cash and cash equivalents       45,999  -   -   -   45,999 

 Derivative financial instruments       (147,050)  128,800   18,250   12,812   12,812 

 Trade and other receivables       214,914   -   -   -   214,914 

 Finance receivables       510,380   39,251   10,308   -   559,939 

           624,243   168,051   28,558   12,812   833,664 

Liabilities          

 Bank facilities       526,540   -   -   -   526,540 

 Derivative financial instruments       117,731   (53,731)  (64,000)  13,387   13,387 

 Trade and other payables       -   -   -   171,179   171,179 

 Finance liabilities       249,922   141,784   35,940   -   427,646 

           894,193   88,053   (28,060)  184,566   1,138,752 

Group 2008 

Assets          

 Cash and cash equivalents       26,101  -   -   -   26,101 

 Derivative financial instruments       400   (6,500)  6,100   2,075   2,075 

 Trade and other receivables       243,158   -   -   -   243,158 

 Finance receivables       373,470   107,825   25,735   -   507,030 

           643,129   101,325   31,835   2,075   778,364 

Liabilities          

 Bank facilities       174,294   304,000   -   -   478,294 

 Derivative financial instruments       (109,566)  80,566   29,000   3,796   3,796 

 Trade and other payables       -   -   -   176,058   176,058 

 Finance liabilities       269,875   37,729   4,332   -   311,936 

           334,603   422,295   33,332   179,854   970,084  
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Company 2009

Assets          

 Cash and cash equivalents      -   32,083   -   32,083   32,083 

 Derivative financial instruments      5,236   -   -   5,236   5,236 

 Trade and other receivables      -   340,986   -   340,986   340,986 

 Other investments      -   27,878   8,551   36,429   36,429 

 Finance receivables      -   4,470   -   4,470   4,470 

          5,236   405,417   8,551   419,204   419,204 

Liabilities          

 Derivative financial instruments      10,899   -   -   10,899   10,899 

 Trade and other payables      -   -   77,949   77,949   77,949 

 Bank facilities      -   453,966   -   453,966   453,966 

          10,899   453,966   77,949   542,814   542,814 

Company 2008          

Assets          

 Cash and cash equivalents      -   14,758   -   14,758   14,758 

 Derivative financial instruments      1,780   -   -   1,780   1,780 

 Trade and other receivables      -   293,825   -   293,825   293,825 

 Other investments      -   754   5,518   6,272   6,272 

 Finance receivables      -   4,440   -   4,440   3,747 

          1,780   313,777   5,518   321,075   320,382 

Liabilities          

 Derivative financial instruments      2,537   -   -   2,537   2,537 

 Trade and other payables      -   -   104,595   104,595   104,595 

 Deposits and other borrowings      -   -   2,454   2,454   2,454 

 Bank facilities      -   358,727   -   358,727   358,727 

          2,537   358,727   107,049   468,313   468,313 
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GROUP

2009

$000

GROUP

2008

$000

Company 2009 

Assets          

 Cash and cash equivalents       32,083  -   -   -   32,083 

 Derivative financial instruments       -   -   -   5,236   5,236 

 Trade and other receivables       369,258   -   -   -   369,258 

 Finance receivables       4,470   -   -   -   4,470 

           405,811   -   -   5,236   411,047 

Liabilities          

 Bank facilities       453,966   -   -   -   453,966 

 Derivative financial instruments       120,000   (45,000)  (75,000)  10,899   10,899 

 Trade and other payables       -   -   -   77,949   77,949 

 Finance liabilities       -   -   -   -   - 

           573,966   (45,000)  (75,000)  88,848   542,814

Company 2008

Assets          

 Cash and cash equivalents       14,758  -   -   -   14,758 

 Derivative financial instruments       4,500   (4,500)  -   1,780   1,780 

 Trade and other receivables       301,199   -   -   -   301,199 

 Finance receivables       -   4,440   -   -   4,440 

           320,457   (60)  -   1,780   322,177 

Liabilities          

 Bank facilities       194,727   164,000   -   -   358,727 

 Derivative financial instruments       122,000   (87,000)  (35,000)  2,537   2,537 

 Trade and other payables       -   -   -   104,595   104,595 

 Finance liabilities       2,454   -   -   -   2,454 

           319,181   77,000   (35,000)  107,132   468,313   
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Credit Risk          
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the Group’s maximum credit exposure.  The Group’s maximum credit exposure to credit risk 
for receivables by geographic regions is as follows:       
           

Total finance receivables, trade and other receivables      

New Zealand          727,369   707,338 

Australia           11,261   20,236 

South America          36,223   22,614 

              774,853   750,188 

Concentrations of Credit Risk          
Financial instruments which potentially subject the Group to concentrations of credit risk principally consist of bank balances, advances, 
trade debtors, and interest rate forward agreements.  The Group places its cash and short term investments with three major trading banks. 
Concentrations of credit risk with respect to advances are limited due to the large number of customers included in the Group’s farming 
customer base in New Zealand.        

The Group leases a fleet of vehicles for use by employees, agents and representatives. Leases are typically for a period of three years.  
The Group leases photocopiers.  Leases are typically for a period of three years.    
The Group also leases and subleases land and buildings from which it conducts operations. These leases range in length from 1 to 15 years 
with various rights of renewal.  Where surplus properties are unable to be exited, sublease revenue is obtained where possible on a short-term 
temporary basis, totalling $0.195m (2008: $0.311).       
    

36   OPERATING LEASES

Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows: 

Within one year        17,942   20,088   15,456   18,981 

Between one and five years        33,968   43,605   31,514   39,440 

Beyond five years        33,058   26,068   32,898   26,068 

            84,968   89,761   79,869   84,489 
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   COMMITMENTS

There are commitments with respect to:       

Capital expenditure not provided for           10,784   14,126 

Commitments to extend credit          93,044   65,110 

Investment in BioPacific Ventures          2,649   6,126 

              106,477   85,362 
Investment in BioPacific Ventures          

The Group has committed $14 million to an international fund established for investment in food and agriculture life sciences.  The Group’s 
investment in BioPacific Ventures will be made over approximately six years. The investment has an anticipated total lifespan of 12 years.  At 30 June 
2009 $11.351 million has been drawn on the committed level of investment (2008: $7.780 million), which is included in other investments. 

There are no material commitments relating to investment in associates.      
       

38   CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There are contingent liabilities with respect to:      

Guarantees          23,464   11,178 

PGG Wrightson Loyalty Reward Programme      606   612 

              24,070   11,790 
Guarantees          
The guarantees are provided to banks of subsidiary companies for borrowings and to other various third parties.    
          
PGG Wrightson Loyalty Reward Programme      
The PGG Wrightson Loyalty Reward Programme is run in conjunction with the co-branded American Express card. A provision is retained for 
the expected level of points redemption. The contingent liability represents the balance of live points that are not provided for.  
No losses are expected to arise from these contingent liabilities.      
There are no contingent liabilities relating to investments in associates.

39   

The Group is subject to significant seasonal fluctuations. In particular Livestock and Seeds activity are significantly weighted to the second  
half of the financial year. Seeds revenues reflects the fact the Group operates in geographical zones that suit Autumn harvesting and sowing.  
New Zealand generally has spring calving and lambing and so Livestock trading is weighted towards the second half of the financial year  
in order for farmers to maximize their incomes.  The Group recognises this is the nature of the industry and plans and manages its  
business accordingly.
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40   RELATED PARTIES

Company and ultimate controlling party       
The immediate Company and ultimate controlling party of the Group is PGG Wrightson Limited.    
          
Transactions with key management personnel 
Share based payment to Managing Director and Executive Officers    
A share and loan scheme was entered into with the Managing Director in 2008.  The scheme enables the Managing Director to acquire 
2,500,000 shares in the Company in 5 annual tranches, with a $5,000,000 loan from the Company.  Each loan tranche will be recognised when 
the associated performance criteria are met.  No interest is payable by the Managing Director while employed by the Company.  The loan can 
be written off pro rata in five $1,000,000 instalments in February of each year subject to meeting performance criteria.  Each year unrestricted 
ownership of one-fifth of the shares can transfer to the Managing Director.     
     
Three additional share and loan schemes have been entered into in the current year with senior executives.  The terms are the same as those for 
the Managing Director.  In total 1,091,769 shares are available to these senior executives with a loan value of $3,000,000.   
       
As at 30 June 2009 the loan balance outstanding for both Managing Director and senior executives was $Nil (2008: $Nil) and the number of shares 
for which unrestricted ownership has been transferred is Nil (2008: Nil). The cost of these non-transferred shares is included in investments.  
        
Key Management personnel compensation      
In addition to their salaries, the Group also provides non-cash benefits to directors and executive officers, and contributes to a post-employment 
defined benefit plan on their behalf. In accordance with the terms of the plan, executive officers retired at age 60, are entitled to receive a lump 
sum payment at the date of retirement from the plan.      
    

Short term employee benefits          4,316   3,002 
Termination benefits          2   13 
              4,318   3,015 

Directors fees incurred during the year are disclosed in Note 6 Operating Expenses, and in the Statutory Information.   
       
Other Transactions with Key Management Personnel     
A number of key management personnel, or their related parties, hold positions in other entities that result in them having control or significant 
influence over the financial or operating policies of these entities. A number of these entities transacted with the Group during the reporting 
period. The terms and conditions of these transactions with key management personnel and their related parties were no more favourable 
than those available, or which might reasonably be expected to be available, on similar transactions to non-key management personnel related 
entities on an arm’s length basis.          

From time to time directors of the Group, or their related entities, may use the PGG Wrightson American Express credit card facility and/or 
purchase goods from the Group. These purchases are on the same terms and conditions as those entered into by other Group employees or 
customers and are trivial or domestic in nature.       
   
The aggregate value of transactions and outstanding balances relating to key management personnel and entities over which they have control 
or significant influence were as follows:          

Other Related Party Transactions     

Sale of goods and services      

NZFSU - Management and Investor Services  4,216   21,219   22,720   18,118 

    

All transactions and outstanding balances with these related parties are priced on an arm’s length basis and are to be settled in cash within 

six months of the reporting date. None of the balances are secured.     

     

Management fees from Subsidiaries     

During the financial year, the Company received management fees from subsidiaries as follows.  These management fees were eliminated  

on consolidation.  
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Agricom Limited          -   1,000 

Agriculture New Zealand Limited          2,000   6,000 

Agri-feeds Limited          2,000   11,000 

PGG Wrightson Seeds Limited          20,000   24,000 

Wrightson Seeds Limited          -   29,000 

PGG Wrightson Funds Management Limited     15,000   - 

PGG Wrightson Investments Limited          2,000   - 

              41,000   71,000  

Subsidiary intercompany trading          
A number of members of the Group transacted with other members of the Group in the reporting period.  Balances on hand at balance date 
are disclosed in trade and other receivables, and trade and other payables.  All intercompany transactions are eliminated on consolidation.

41   

Chairman of the Board of Directors          

On 23 July Keith Smith was appointed Chairman of the Board of Directors following Craig Norgate’s resignation.  Craig Norgate will remain a 
director on the Board.          
          
Bank Facilities          
Since balance date the Company has re-negotiated a revised banking package with it’s banking syndicate. The revised terms are set out in 
Note 15. In conjunction with the re-negotiation of the terms of the Company’s bank facilities the Company has been reviewing its capital 
structure and evaluating options for meeting the new bank debt amortisation schedule. As part of this review, the Company is continuing to 
progress its previously announced debt reduction, the sale of selected assets and the potential equity raising involving both major exisiting 
shareholders and new investors, potentially including the introduction of a new cornerstone shareholder.    
      

Director Transaction

C Norgate, B McConnon Rural Saver account  -   57   -   - 

B McConnon Debentures - secured and bonds  79   78   1,025   1,000 

B Jolliffe (retired 24 June 2009) Debentures - secured   3   3   75   60 

S Cushing Deposits and other borrowings  -   88   -   1,000 
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The following particulars of notices were given by Directors of the Company pursuant to Section 140(2) of the Companies Act 1993 for the year 1 July 2008 to 
30 June 2009 (*Interest ceased during the year.)

DIRECTOR INTEREST ORGANISATION    
 
Sir Selwyn Cushing Chairman NZ Rural Property Trust Management Limited
  Chairman/Shareholder Rural Equities Limited
   Skellerup Holdings Limited
  Deputy Chairman/Shareholder CableTalk Group Limited*
  Director PGG Wrightson Employee Benefits Plan Trustee Limited  
   PGG Wrightson Finance Limited
   PGG Wrightson Trustee Limited
  Director/Shareholder H & G Limited
   Makowai Farm Limited
   Whakamarumaru Station Limited
  Director/Trustee Shareholder PGG Wrightson Employee Benefits Plan Limited
  Unit Holder NZ Rural Property Trust

M J Flett Director/Shareholder Barkers Fruit Processors Limited and subsidiaries
   Blueprint Holdings 2006 Limited and subsidiaries
   Kerry Industries Limited 
   Milkpride Holdings Limited
   Milkpride Limited
   NZ Farming Systems Uruguay Limited
   Payton Holdings Limited and subsidiaries
   TCO Limited
  Director PGG Wrightson Finance Limited
  Shareholder Alliance Group Limited
   Ballance Agri-Nutrients Limited
   CRT Limited
   Ravensdown Fertiliser Co-operative Limited
  Trustee Liaki Trust
   Susan Flett Trust
   
B R Irvine Chairman/Director Christchurch City Holdings Limited
Appointed 24 June 2009  House of Travel Holdings Limited and subsidiaries
  Director Godfrey Hirst NZ Limited and subsidiaries
   MARAC Finance Limited
   Market Gardeners Limited and subsidiaries 
   Perpetual Trust Limited
   PGG Wrightson Finance Limited
   Provencocadmus Limited
   Pyne Gould Corporation Limited
   Rakon Limited
   Scenic Circle Hotels Limited
   Skope Industries Limited
  Director/Shareholder BR Irvine Limited

B J Jolliffe Chairman Nissan Finance New Zealand Limited*
Retired 24 June 2009  Perpetual Trust Limited*
  Managing Director MARAC Finance Limited*
   Pyne Gould Corporation Limited*
  Director PGG Wrightson Finance Limited*
  Trustee PGG Wrightson Limited Employee Share Purchase Scheme*

S R Maling Chairman MARAC Finance Limited
   Pyne Gould Corporation Limited
  Shareholder Pyne Gould Corporation Limited
  Director Perpetual Trust Limited
   PGG Wrightson Finance Limited
  Director/Shareholder NZ Farming Systems Uruguay Limited

STATUTORY DISCLOSURES
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AUDIT REPORT
PGG WRIGHTSON FINANCE LIMITED

To the shareholder of PGG Wrightson Limited

We have audited the financial statements on pages 26 to 83.  The financial statements provide information about the past financial 
performance and financial position of the company and group as at 30 June 2009.  This information is stated in accordance with the 
accounting policies set out on pages 32 to 41.

Directors’ responsibilities
The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the 
company and group as at 30 June 2009 and the results of their operations and cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Auditors’ responsibilities
It is our responsibility to express an independent opinion on the financial statements presented by the Directors and report our  
opinion to you.

Basis of opinion
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.   
It also includes assessing:

We conducted our audit in accordance with New Zealand Auditing Standards.  We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the 
information and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to obtain reasonable assurance 
that the financial statements are free from material misstatements, whether caused by fraud or error.  In forming our opinion, we also 
evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements.
Our firm has also provided other assurance services to the company and certain of its subsidiaries.  Partners and employees of our firm may 
also deal with the company and group on normal terms within the ordinary course of trading activities of the business of the company and 
group.  There are, however, certain restrictions on borrowings which the Partners and employees of our firm can have with the group.   
These matters have not impaired our independence as auditors of the company and group.  The firm has no other relationship with, or 
interest in, the company or any of its subsidiaries.

Unqualified opinion
We have obtained all the information and explanations we have required.
In our opinion:

     -  comply with New Zealand generally accepted accounting practice;

     -  give a true and fair view of the financial position of the company and group as at 30 June 2009 and the results of their operations and  
       cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Our audit was completed on 27 August 2009 and our unqualified opinion is expressed as at that date.

Christchurch
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DIRECTOR INTEREST ORGANISATION    

J B McConnon Director/Shareholder Aorangi Laboratories Limited
   SABCON Limited
  Director D C Ross Limited 
   PGG Wrightson Finance Limited
   Rural Portfolio Capital Limited
   Rural Portfolio Investments Limited
   Rural Portfolio Investments Securities Limited
   45 South Exports Limited
   45 South Management Limited
  Trustee PGG Wrightson Limited Employee Share Purchase Scheme*

T M Miles Trustee Eastbourne Trust
   M R Miles Trust
  Director PGG Wrightson Finance Limited
  Director/Shareholder Jeffries Miles Consulting Limited
   Jeffries Miles Property Limited

M C Norgate Director Aotearoa Fisheries Limited
   Centre for High Performance Work Limited
   Kura Limited
   MCN Rural Investments Limited
   New Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants
   NZ Farming Systems Uruguay Limited
   PGG Wrightson Finance Limited (Chairman until 23 July 2009) 

   Port Taranaki Limited
   Rural Portfolio Capital Limited
   Rural Portfolio Investments Limited
   Rural Portfolio Investments Securities Limited
   Sealord Group Limited
   Wool Partners International Limited
  Director/Shareholder C & J Custodian Limited
   MCN Holdings Limited
  Trustee PGG Wrightson Limited Employee Share Purchase Scheme*

K R Smith Chairman Healthcare Holdings Limited and subsidiaries
   Mobile Surgical Services Limited
   NZ Farming Systems Uruguay Limited
    PGG Wrightson Finance Limited (Chairman from 23 July 2009)

   The Warehouse Group Limited
   Tourism Holdings Limited
  Director Electronic Navigation Limited
   Enterprise Motor Group Limited and subsidiaries 
   Goodman (NZ) Limited
   Gwendoline Holdings Limited  (non trading investment company) 

   James Raymond Holdings Limited  (non trading investment company)

   Mighty River Power Limited
   Wickliffe Limited*
  Member New Zealand Advisory Board of LEK Consulting Limited

W D Thomas Director PGG Wrightson Finance Limited
  Trustee Longbeach Trust

In addition:

 with PGG Wrightson Group companies on normal terms of trade.
 

 NZ Farming Systems Uruguay Limited transacts business with the PGG Wrightson Group through farming and management contracts.

 

    REMUNERATION     
   & APPOINTMENTS  TOTAL
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR’S FEES AUDIT COMMITTEE COMMITTEE  CREDIT COMMITTEE REMUNERATION

Sir Selwyn Cushing $80,000.00 $10,000.00   $90,000.00

M J Flett $80,000.00 $10,000.00   $90,000.00

B Irvine (1)  N/A   N/A

B J Jolliffe (2) $80,000.00  $5,000.00  $85,000.00

S R Maling $80,000.00 $10,000.00 N/A (3)  $90,000.00

T M Miles (4)     $1,654,084.75
Managing Director     

J B McConnon $80,000.00  $5,000.00  $85,000.00

M C Norgate $210,000.00  $7,500.00 $10,000.00 $227,500.00
Chairman to 23 July 2009

K R Smith $80,000.00 $20,000.00   $100,000.00
Chairman   

W D Thomas $80,000.00   $10,000.00 $90,000.00

PGW DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS
  30 JUNE 2009 30 JUNE 2008

Sir Selwyn Cushing (7) – Beneficially owned 50,948 48,789 

 – Beneficial interest 2,776,589 2,725,985

M J Flett – Beneficially owned 12,885 12,339

B R Irvine (5)  

B J Jolliffe   – Beneficially owned 11,170 10,696 

S R Maling (5) – Beneficially owned 5,248 4,814 

J B McConnon (6) 

T M Miles – Beneficially owned 2,847,104 2,559,547

 – Beneficial interest 53,557 51,191

M C Norgate (6)  

K R Smith – Beneficially owned 8,625 8,258 

 – Non beneficial interest 25,770 24,696 

W D Thomas – Beneficially owned 6,824 6,269 

 – Beneficial interest 11,506 10,557

(1) Appointed as Director 24 June 2009. Appointed as Chair of Audit Committee 22 July 2009.
(2) Retired 24 June 2009
(3) Appointed to Remuneration & Appointments Committee on 2 July 2009
(4) The Managing Director does not receive Directors fees and his remuneration received in the year to 30 June 2009 listed above is  
 comprised of base salary and a short term incentive of $304,109.59 paid in August 2008, for performance during the year to  
 30 June 2008. The Managing Director also has a long term incentive in the form of a share based payment, as disclosed in note 40 to 
 the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
The following persons held office, or ceased to hold office, as a Director during the year to 30 June 2009 and received the following remuneration (including the 
value of any benefits):

 PGG WRIGHTSON LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009             86         PGG WRIGHTSON LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009

(5) B R Irvine and S R Maling are associated persons of substantial security holder Pyne Gould Corporation Limited which held 65,330,391 shares as at  
30 June 2009. By virtue of a shareholder agreement between Rural Portfolio Investments Limited and Pyne Gould Corporation, they are also associated 
persons of Rural Portfolio Investments Limited and Rural Portfolio Investments Securities Limited.

(6) M C Norgate and J B McConnon are associated persons of substantial security holder Rural Portfolio Investments Limited and Rural Portfolio Investments 
Securities Limited, which together held 86,797,343 shares as at 30 June 2009. By virtue of a shareholder agreement between Rural Portfolio Investments 
Limited and Pyne Gould Corporation, they are also associated persons of Pyne Gould Corporation. M C Norgate and J B McConnon have a beneficial interest 
in shares held by Rural Portfolio Investments Limited and Rural Portfolio Investments Securities Limited.

(7) Sir Selwyn Cushing is a Director and non beneficial Trustee for the PGG Wrightson Employee Benefits Plan Limited (formerly the W & K Staff Pension Fund 
Limited) holding 2,738,418 ordinary shares as at 30 June 2009.
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DIRECTORS’ SHARE TRANSACTIONS
The Directors of the Company have notified the Company of the following share transactions between 1 July 2008 and 30 June 2009:

DIRECTOR TRANSACTION DATE NUMBER PRICE PER SHARE

Sir Selwyn Cushing Beneficial interest in disposition of shares by H & G Limited 30 March 2009 70,001 $1.0817
  
 Non beneficial interest in bonus issue of shares to PGG Wrightson 
 Employee Benefits Plan Limited, nominee investment company
 of the PGG Wrightson Employee Benefits Plan 1 April 2009 120,987 $1.0817
 
 Beneficial interest in bonus issue of shares to H & G Limited 1 April 2009 120,605 $1.0817
 
 Beneficial interest in bonus issue of shares to self 1 April 2009 2,159 $1.0817
 
M J Flett Beneficial interest in off market acquisition by Susan Flett Trust under 
 an institutional placement to be settled on 30 September 2008 but 
 subsequently cancelled 2 October 2009 3,333,333 $1.80

 Beneficial interest in bonus issue of shares to self 1 April 2009 546 $1.0817
    
B J Jolliffe Non beneficial interest in acquisition of shares by PGG Wrightson 
 Staff Share scheme from ex-employee 8 July 2008 5,892 $1.60 to $1.71
 
 Non beneficial interest in acquisition of shares by PGG Wrightson 
 Staff Share scheme from ex-employee 31 July 2008 5,398 $1.60 to $1.71
 
 Non beneficial interest in transfer of shares from Trustees of 
 PGG Wrightson Staff Share Scheme to PGW Corporate 
 Trustee Limited 9 September 2008  815,649 
  
 Associated person interest in bonus issue of shares to substantial 
 security holder Pyne Gould Corporation Limited 1 April 2009 2,886,384 $1.0817

 Beneficial interest in bonus issue of shares to self 1 April 2009 474 $1.0817

J B McConnon Associated person interest in acquisition of shares by substantial 
 security holder Rural Portfolio Investments Limited  2 July 2008 260,000 $2.57

 Associated person interest in acquisition of shares by substantial 
 security holder Rural Portfolio Investments Limited  3 July 2008 70,000 $2.54

 Associated person interest in acquisition of shares by substantial 
 security holder Rural Portfolio Investments Limited  8 July 2008 137,664 $2.56

 Non beneficial interest in acquisition of shares by PGG Wrightson 
 Staff Share scheme from ex-employee 8 July 2008 5,892 $1.60 to $1.71

 Associated person interest in acquisition of shares by substantial 
 security holder Rural Portfolio Investments Limited  11 July 2008 97,019 $2.55

 Associated person interest in acquisition of shares by substantial 
 security holder Rural Portfolio Investments Limited  14-15 July 2008 105,742 $2.55

 Non beneficial interest in acquisition of shares by PGG Wrightson 
 Staff Share scheme from ex-employee 31 July 2008 5,398 $1.60 to $1.71

 Non beneficial interest in transfer of shares from Trustees of 
 PGG Wrightson Staff Share Scheme to PGW Corporate 
 Trustee Limited 9 September 2008  815,649 
 

 
DIRECTORS’ SHARE TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

DIRECTOR TRANSACTION DATE NUMBER PRICE PER SHARE

J B McConnon Associated person interest in off market acquisition by substantial 
(CONTINUED) security holder Rural Portfolio Investments Limited under an institutional 
 placement to be settled on 30 September 2008 but subsequently 
 cancelled 2 October 2008 6,460,599 $1.80

 Associated person interest in disposition of shares by substantial 
 security holder Rural Portfolio Investments Limited  26 March 2009 2,300,000 $1.20

 Associated person interest in bonus issue of shares to substantial 
 security holder Rural Portfolio Investments Limited  1 April 2009 4,012,081 $1.0817

 Associated person interest in disposition of shares by substantial 
 security holder Rural Portfolio Investments Limited  19 May 2009 50,000 $1.40

 Associated person interest in disposition of shares by substantial 
 security holder Rural Portfolio Investments Limited  2 June 2009 1,662,081 $1.30

S R Maling Beneficial interest in bonus issue of shares to self 3 October 2008 211 $2.5193
 
 Associated person interest in bonus issue of shares to substantial 
 security holder Pyne Gould Corporation Limited 1 April 2009 2,886,384 $1.0817

 Beneficial interest in bonus issue of shares to self 1 April 2009 223 $1.0817

T M Miles Beneficial interest in purchase of shares by self 8 October 2008 166,930 $1.7325

 Beneficial interest in bonus issue of shares to self 1 April 2009 120,627 $1.0817
 
 Beneficial interest in bonus issue of shares to Eastbourne Trust 1 April 2009 2,366 $1.0817
 
M C Norgate Associated person interest in acquisition of shares by substantial 
 security holder Rural Portfolio Investments Limited  2 July 2008 260,000 $2.57

 Associated person interest in acquisition of shares by substantial 
 security holder Rural Portfolio Investments Limited  3 July 2008 70,000 $2.54

 Associated person interest in acquisition of shares by substantial 
 security holder Rural Portfolio Investments Limited  8 July 2008 137,664 $2.56

 Non beneficial interest in acquisition of shares by PGG Wrightson 
 Staff Share scheme from ex-employee 8 July 2008 5,892 $1.60 to $1.71

 Associated person interest in acquisition of shares by substantial 
 security holder Rural Portfolio Investments Limited  11 July 2008 97,019 $2.55

 Associated person interest in acquisition of shares by substantial 
 security holder Rural Portfolio Investments Limited  14-15 July 2008 105,742 $2.55

 Non beneficial interest in acquisition of shares by PGG Wrightson 
 Staff Share scheme from ex-employee 31 July 2008 5,398 $1.60 to $1.71

 Non beneficial interest in transfer of shares from Trustees of 
 PGG Wrightson Staff Share Scheme to PGW Corporate 
 Trustee Limited 9 September 2008  815,649 

 Associated person interest in ABN AMRO Equity Derivatives 
 purchased by J Norgate 23 September 2008 1,000 $1.20
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DIRECTORS’ SHARE TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

DIRECTOR TRANSACTION DATE NUMBER PRICE PER SHARE

M C Norgate Beneficial interest in ABN AMRO Equity Derivatives purchased 
(CONTINUED) by MCN Holdings Ltd 26 September 2008  30,000 $0.95

 Associated person interest in off market acquisition by substantial 
 security holder Rural Portfolio Investments Limited under an 
 institutional placement to be settled on 30 September 2008 
 but subsequently cancelled 2 October 2008 6,460,599 $1.80

 Associated person interest in disposition of shares by substantial 
 security holder Rural Portfolio Investments Limited  26 March 2009 2,300,000 $1.20

 Associated person interest in cancelled ABN AMRO
 Equity Derivatives held by D, J and A Norgate 31 March 2009 8,000
 
 Beneficial interest in cancelled ABN AMRO
 Equity Derivatives held by MCN Holdings Ltd 31 March 2009  60,000 

 Associated person interest in bonus issue of shares to substantial 
 security holder Rural Portfolio Investments Limited  1 April 2009 4,012,081 $1.0817

 Associated person interest in disposition of shares by substantial 
 security holder Rural Portfolio Investments Limited  19 May 2009 50,000 $1.40

 Associated person interest in disposition of shares by substantial 
 security holder Rural Portfolio Investments Limited  2 June 2009 1,662,081 $1.30

K R Smith Beneficial interest in bonus issue of shares to self 1 April 2009 366 $1.0817
 
 Non beneficial interest in bonus issue of shares to 
 James Raymond Holdings Limited 1 April 2009 546 $1.0817
 
 Non beneficial interest in bonus issue of shares to 
 Gwendoline Holdings Limited 1 April 2009 546 $1.0817
  
W D Thomas Beneficial interest in bonus issue of shares to self 3 October 2008 274 $2.5193
  1 April 2009 290 $1.0817
 Beneficial interest in bonus issue of shares
 to Longbeach Trust 3 October 2008 461 $2.5193
  1 April 2009 488 $1.0817

DIRECTORS’ INDEPENDENCE
The Board has determined that as at 30 June 2009, the following Directors are Independent Directors as defined under the New Zealand Exchange rules:

Sir Selwyn Cushing, M J Flett, K R Smith and W D Thomas
The following Directors are not Independent Directors by virtue of their association with a substantial security holder or by being an 
Executive Director:

B R Irvine, S R Maling, J B McConnon, M C Norgate and T M Miles – Executive Director

NZX WAIVER
One waiver was granted and published by the NZX during the 12 months ending 31 July 2009. It was granted in September 2008 from NZSX Listing Rules 
7.3.5(a), 7.6.4 and 9.2.1 to enable Rural Portfolio Investments Ltd and a director M J Flett to participate in a private placement and for the Company to enter into 
a NZ Farming Systems Uruguay Limited share sale transaction.  The transactions contemplated by the waiver did not proceed.
In accordance with the NZSX Listing Rule 10.5.3(f), the full text of this waiver is available on the Company’s website at http://www.pggwrightson.co.nz/for_
investors.html. This waiver will remain on the Company’s website for at least 12 months following publication of this annual report.

 
In accordance with section 162 of the Companies Act 1993 and the Constitution of the Company, the Company has insured Directors and Executives against 
liabilities to other parties that may arise from their positions as Directors of the Company, Subsidiaries and Associates. This insurance does not cover liabilities 
arising from criminal actions and deliberate and reckless acts or omissions by the Directors.

The Board has implemented a protocol governing the disclosure of Company information to its substantial security holders. In accordance with this protocol 
and section 145 of the Companies Act 1993, B R Irvine and S R Maling have given notice that they may disclose certain information to Pyne Gould Corporation 
Limited in order to seek, and inform the Board of, its view as to the governance and operation of the Company and in order to enable Pyne Gould Corporation 
Limited to comply with certain statutory obligations. M C Norgate and J B McConnon have given notice that they may disclose certain information to Rural 
Portfolio Investments Limited in order to seek, and inform the Board of, its view as to the governance and operation of the Company and in order to enable Rural 
Portfolio Investments Limited to comply with certain statutory obligations. Pyne Gould Corporation Limited and Rural Portfolio Investments Limited have signed 
confidentiality agreements in favour of the Company.
 

Set out below are the numbers of employees of the Company and its subsidiaries who received remuneration and other benefits of $100,000 or more during 
the year, in their capacity as employees. Amounts paid include the employer’s contributions to superannuation funds, retiring entitlements and payments 
to terminating employees (e.g. long service leave). Redundancy payments are not included. The schedule includes livestock staff who are remunerated on a 
commission basis and whose remuneration fluctuates materially from year to year.

REMUNERATION  NUMBER OF

$100,000  –  $110,000 37

$110,001  –  $120,000 21

$120,001  –  $130,000 22

$130,001  –  $140,000 25

$140,001  –  $150,000 14

$150,001  –  $160,000 13

$160,001  –  $170,000 11

$170,001  –  $180,000 10

$180,001  –  $190,000 7

$190,001  –  $200,000 8

$200,001  –  $210,000 7

$210,000  –  $220,000 6

$220,000  –  $230,000 3

$230,001  –  $240,000 2

$240,001  –  $250,000 2

$250,001  –  $260,000 1

REMUNERATION  NUMBER OF

$270,001  –  $280,000 2

$280,001  –  $290,000 2

$290,001  –  $300,000 1

$300,001  –  $310,000 2

$310,001  –  $320,000 2

$320,001  –  $330,000 3

$340,001  –  $350,000 2

$350,001  –  $360,000 1

$360,001  –  $370,000 1

$370,001  –  $380,000 1

$480,001  –  $490,000 1

$490,001  –  $500,000 1

$570,001  –  $580,000 1

$670,001  –  $680,000 1

$1,650,001 –  $1,660,000 1

The Remuneration and Appointments Committee of the Company’s Board approves the Group’s remuneration policy. The Committee also reviews and 
recommends to the Board for approval, the remuneration of the Managing Director and executives who report directly to the Managing Director.
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GENERAL DISCLOSURES

The following persons held the office of Director of the respective subsidiaries during the year on behalf of the Group. Directors appointed (A) or who resigned (R) 
during the year are indicated. Staff appointments do not receive Director fees or other benefits as a Director. Unless otherwise indicated, Group ownership is 100%.
* Company amalgamated within PGG Wrightson Group during the year and struck off

Afinlux S.A. (Romualdo Rodriguez) (Uruguay) (51%)  C Miguel de Leon, R Rodríguez, R Puente

Agar Cross S.A. (Agrosan) (Uruguay)   B Brook, C Miguel de Leon, M Sang

Agricom Limited  T M Miles, M E Sang

Agricom Australia Pty Limited (Australia)  M E Sang, G Wade

Agriculture New Zealand Limited  T M Miles, M E Sang

Agri-feeds Limited  T M Miles, M E Sang

Agri Pro Seeds Limited*  T M Miles, M E Sang

Agritranz Limited (50%)  B P Gordon (A)

Alfalfares (Argentina) (51%)   C Miguel de Leon, R Moyano

Ashburton Saleyards Company Limited*  T M Miles, M E Sang

Associated Auctioneers (Fordell) Limited*  T M Miles, M E Sang 

AusWest Seeds Pty Limited (Australia)  M E Sang, G Wade

Blue Ocean Holdings Limited*  T M Miles, M E Sang

Canterbury Sale Yards (1996) Limited  B H W Boyes, S L Dickson, A E Marfell (R), S D Martin, T M Miles (A), M E Sang (A)

Cornwall Livestock Limited*  T M Miles, M E Sang

Dunedin Saleyards Co Limited*  A Eason, R Gamble

Farmsafe Limited (33%)  C B Spence (A)

Forage Innovations Limited (51%)  D H F Green (A), J D McKenzie (A)

Fruitfed Export Limited*  T M Miles, M E Sang

Grain Dryers Limited*  T M Miles, M E Sang

Gramina Pty Limited (Australia)  M E Sang, J McKenzie, P Barrowclough, Dr D R Woodfield (A)

Grasslands Innovation Limited (50%)  D H F Green, J D McKenzie

Havelock (Shelf Company No 55) Limited*  T M Miles, M E Sang

Hunker S.A (Rural Centre)  (Uruguay)  B Brook, C Miguel de Leon, M Sang

Idogal S.A. (Veterinaria Lasplaces ) (Uruguay) (51%)  C Miguel de Leon, N Guarneri, R Puente

Irrigation & Pumping Services Limited*  T M Miles, M E Sang

J A Brasell Limited*  T M Miles, M E Sang

Kelso Wrightson (2004) Limited (50%)  D H J Baines, G B Higgins

Lanelle S.A. (Riegoriental) (Uruguay) (70%)  B Brook, C Miguel de Leon, M Sang

Nelson Livestock Services Limited*  T M Miles (A), M E Sang (A)

New Zealand Velvet Marketing Company Limited (50%)  J R McCombe (A), W D Thomas (A), C Wilkshire (A)(R)

NZ Ruralco Participacoes Ltda (Brazil)  Homero De Boni Junior 

Northfuels Limited (50%)  G R B Bunting (A), S K McDowall (A)

NZ Farming Systems Uruguay Limited (11.5%)  M J Flett, S R Maling, M C Norgate, K R Smith 

Onewool Limited*  T M Miles, M E Sang

Otago Farmers Limited*  T M Miles, M E Sang

Owaka Saleyards Limited*  M R Amos, R S Gamble

Pastoral Finance Co Limited*  T M Miles, M E Sang

Pastoral Greenhouse Gas Research Limited (14%)  D P Lynch (A), P S Tocker (R)

Peter Grellet Livestock Limited*  T M Miles, M E Sang

PGG Limited*  T M Miles, M E Sang

PGG Seeds Australia Pty Limited (Australia)  M E Sang, G Wade 

PGG Wrightson Consortia Research Limited  T M Miles, M E Sang

PGG Wrightson Employee Benefits Plan Limited  Sir Selwyn Cushing, M E Sang, M R Thomas

PGG Wrightson Employee Benefits Plan Trustee Limited  Sir Selwyn Cushing, M E Sang, M R Thomas

PGG Wrightson Finance Limited  Sir Selwyn Cushing, M J Flett, B R Irvine (A), B J Jolliffe (R), S R Maling,  

  J B McConnon, T M Miles, M C Norgate, K R Smith, W D Thomas

PGG Wrightson Funds Management Limited  T M Miles, M E Sang

PGG Wrightson Genomics Limited  T M Miles, M E Sang 

PGG Wrightson Investments Limited  T M Miles, M E Sang

PGG Wrightson Property Holdings Limited*  T M Miles, M E Sang

PGG Wrightson Real Estate Australia Pty Limited (Australia)  M E Sang, G R Wade, A Gilmour, N Thorpe (R)

PGG Wrightson Seeds Limited  T M Miles, M E Sang

PGG Wrightson Seeds (Australia) Pty Limited (Australia)  M E Sang, G R Wade

PGG Wrightson Trustee Limited  Sir Selwyn Cushing, M E Sang, MR Thomas 

PGG Wrightson Uruguay Limited SA (Uruguay)  B A Brook (R), C Miguel de Leon, M E Sang

PGW Corporate Trustee Limited  T M Miles (A), M E Sang (A)

Plant Breeders New Zealand Limited*  T M Miles, M E Sang

Reid Farmers Limited*  T M Miles, M E Sang

Stephen Pasture Seeds Pty Limited (Australia)  M E Sang, G R Wade

Southland Farmers Limited*  T M Miles, M E Sang

Stringer & Co Limited*  T M Miles, M E Sang

Taylor Livestock Limited*  T M Miles, M E Sang

The New Zealand Merino Company Limited (50%)  B P Gordon (A), A E McConnon (A) 

Velvet Logistics Limited (50%)  J R McCombe (A), W D Thomas (A) 

W & K Finance Limited*  T M Miles, M E Sang

Wairarapa Livestock Limited*  T M Miles, M E Sang

Wiley Livestock Limited*  T M Miles, M E Sang

Williams & Kettle Livestock Limited*  T M Miles , M E Sang

Williams and Kettle Limited*  M E Sang

Wool Exchange Invercargill Limited (80%)  J R Morris, N J Thorpe

Wool Partners International Limited (49%)  A E McConnon (A), M C Norgate (A), M Skilling (A)

Wrightson PAS S.A. (Uruguay)  B A Brook, J D McKenzie, C Miguel de Leon, C Perez, M E Sang

Wrightson Seeds (Australia) Pty Limited*  M E Sang, G R Wade

Wrightson Seeds Limited  T M Miles, M E Sang

GENERAL DISCLOSURES
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

PGG Wrightson Limited is quoted on the New Zealand Stock Market of NZX Limited (code PGW). As at 31 July 2009, PGG Wrightson Limited had  
315,815,616 ordinary shares on issue.

At 31 July 2009, the following security holders had given notice in accordance with the Securities Markets Act 1988, that they were substantial security holders  
in the Company. The number of shares shown below are as advised in the substantial security holder notice to the Company and may not be their holding as 
at 31 July 2009.

SHAREHOLDER NUMBER OF SHARES DATE OF NOTICE

Rural Portfolio Investments Limited and Rural Portfolio

Investments Securities Limited (refer to notes 5 and 6 on page 87) 153,839,815 28 April 2009

Pyne Gould Corporation Limited (refer to notes 5 and 6 on page 87) 153,839,815 28 April 2009

South Canterbury Finance Limited** 16,666,666 27 April 2009

The 20 largest shareholders in PGG Wrightson Limited as at 31 July 2009 were:

1. Pyne Gould Corporation Limited (#2) 51,799,842 16.40%

2. Rural Portfolio Investments Limited 44,150,684 13.98%

3. Rural Portfolio Investments Securities Limited 42,646,659 13.50%

4. HSBC Nominees (New Zealand) Limited* (A/C 90) 22,722,500 7.19%

5. Pyne Gould Corporation 13,530,549 4.28%

6. Silver Fern Farms Limited 10,000,000 3.17%

7. National Nominees New Zealand Limited* 5,040,973 1.60%

8. Citibank Nominees (New Zealand) Limited * 3,859,815 1.22%

9. ANZ Nominees Limited * 3,728,540 1.18%

10. Masfen Securities Limited 3,157,916 1.00%

11. New Zealand Superannuation Fund Nominees Limited* 3,037,376 0.96%

12. T M Miles 2,847,104 0.90%

13. H & G Limited 2,776,589 0.88%

14. HSBC Nominees (New Zealand) Limited* (A/C 45) 2,743,499 0.87%

15. PGG Wrightson Employee Benefits Plan Limited 2,738,418 0.87%

16. J M Rose 1,754,784 0.56%

17. AMP Investments Strategic Equity Growth Fund* 1,688,385 0.53%

18. Custodial Services Limited (A/C 3) 938,913 0.30%

19. NZGT Nominees Limited* 870,874 0.28%

20. Custodial Services Limited (A/C 9) 740,564 0.23%

* Shares held in the name of New Zealand Central Securities Depository Limited.
** South Canterbury Finance Limited did not exercise the option to convert subordinated debt into ordinary shares and the option expired on 23 July 2009.

Distribution of ordinary shares and shareholdings at 31 July 2009 was:

SIZE OF HOLDING SHAREHOLDERS SHAREHOLDERS SHARES SHARES

1 – 499 1,346 9.36% 396,212 0.13%

500 – 999 3,160 21.97% 2,170,253 0.69%

1,000 – 4,999 5,745 39.95% 13,642,274 4.32%

5,000 – 9,999 1,864 12.96% 12,780,346 4.05%

10,000 – 49,999 2,012 13.99% 38,539,434 12.20%

50,000 – 999,999 237 1.65% 30,063,464 9.52%

1,000,000 and over 17 0.12% 218,223,633 69.09%

Total  14,381 100.00% 315,815,616 100.00%

Registered addresses of shareholders as at 31 July 2009 were:

ADDRESS SHAREHOLDERS SHAREHOLDERS SHARES SHARES

New Zealand 14,200 98.74% 310,576,333 98.34%

Australia 99 0.67% 4,478,234 1.42%

Other 82 0.59% 761,049 0.24%

Total  14,381 100.00% 315,815,616 100.00%

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
PGG WRIGHTSON LIMITED
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COMPANY NUMBER

142962

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Keith Smith, Chairman

Sir Selwyn Cushing

Murray Flett

Bruce Irvine

Sam Maling

Baird McConnon

Tim Miles 

Craig Norgate

Bill Thomas

MANAGING DIRECTOR

Tim Miles

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Jason Dale

GENERAL COUNSEL/COMPANY SECRETARY

Julian Daly

REGISTERED OFFICE

PGG Wrightson Limited

57 Waterloo Road

PO Box 292

Christchurch 8042

Telephone 64 3 372 0800

Fax 64 3 372 0801

AUDITOR

KPMG

10 Customhouse Quay

PO Box 996

Wellington

Telephone 64 4 816 4500

Fax 64 4 816 4600

SHARE REGISTRY

Computershare Investor Services Limited

Level 2, 159 Hurstmere Road

Takapuna

Private Bag 92 119

Auckland 1142

Shareholder enquiries about transactions, changes of address 

or dividend payments should be directed in the first instance to:

Computershare Investor Services Limited

Telephone 64 9 488 8777

CORPORATE DIRECTORY
PGG WRIGHTSON LIMITED
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